
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Monday, 13 July 2020

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

You can view the 
agenda online by using 
a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below:

3 July 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

5. COVID-19 Pandemic - Recovery - Reinstating Services, Financial Recovery and 
Positive Legacy (To Follow)

6. Fourth Quarter Financial Procurement and Performance Review (To Follow)

7. Financial Planning Process (To Follow)

8. Select Committee Work Programme 

9. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

10. Exclusion of Press and Public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

PART II
11. Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 10)

(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

Public Document Pack



particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

MARK TRILLO
EXEXUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor T Ashton (Chair) Councillor M Stone (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins Councillor O Cross
Councillor S Flower Councillor L Grooby
Councillor D Kerr Councillor D Lomax
Councillor R McKeown Councillor G Oakley
Councillor E Siddall Councillor E Thrane



High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Monday, 10 February 2020 at 6.30 pm in Octagon Lounge, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton

Present: Councillor T Ashton (Chair) 

Councillors J Collins, L Grooby, D Kerr, D Lomax and E Thrane

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors O Cross, S Flower, 
R McKeown, G Oakley and E Siddall

20/41 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Thrane declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in agenda item 
9, “Business Rates Relief Policy and Council Tax Discount Policy) (reason: 
potential 2 year and empty property owner) and withdrew from the meeting 
during discussion and voting on the council tax element of that report

20/42 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENT
(Agenda Item )

The Leader announced that agenda items 15, “Disposal of land at 
Hogshaws” and 16, “Market Street Depot” had been withdrawn from the 
agenda and would not be considered at this meeting.

20/43 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2019 be approved as 
a correct record.

20/44 HM COURTS AND TRIBUNAL SERVICE
(Agenda Item 5)

Due to the weather conditions, the representative from HM Courts and 
Tribunal Service was unable to attend this meeting so the item would be 
deferred to a future meeting.

20/45 NEW PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK
(Agenda Item 6)

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 10 February 2020

2

The Committee scrutinised the draft Performance Framework and 
associated targets for 2020/21 and the findings of the recent online 
consultation which had sought feedback from a range of stakeholders on the 
council’s new corporate plan priorities for 2019 – 2023.  

A Performance Framework workshop had been held on 3 February to give 
members an opportunity to scrutinise the Performance Framework in depth, 
the recommendations of which had been incorporated into the report.

Regarding the Corporate Plan consultation results, disappointment was 
expressed around the number of responses received, and ways in which the 
council could improve communication with residents was discussed.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive be recommended to approve the Performance 
Framework 2020/2021 and the Corporate Plan priorities 2019 – 2023.

20/46 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
2019/20
(Agenda Item 7)

The Committee considered the Council’s overall performance and financial 
position for the period ended 31 December (“Third Quarter 2019/20”).

Reference was made to the underspends recorded for the HRA, Capital 
Programme and General Fund, and it was requested that further checking 
be undertaken around the underspends.

The predicted shortfall in the income for the year as a result of the Council’s 
bottled water licence was queried, and a written explanation would be 
circulated.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Third Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and 
performance position detailed in appendices A, B and C and 
summarised at paragraph 3.3 of the covering report; and

2. That the update to the Council’s procurement rules as a result of the 
revised EU procurement thresholds, be noted.

20/47 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 - 2022/23
(Agenda Item 8)

The Committee considered the proposed budget for 2020/21, updated 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24. Capital Strategy 2020/21, 
proposed Fees and Charges for 2020/21 and Procurement Forward Plan 
2020/21.

The Executive Councillor introduced the proposed budget proposals and 
medium term financial plan which had been updated in accordance with the 
budget setting process. Page 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 10 February 2020

3

In terms of fees and charges, and amendment to the proposed car parking 
charges was circulated in respect of Wye Street Car Park, which proposed 
that the increase on that car park be restricted to 20p on all bandings in 
2020/21. This proposal was made to recognise the importance of sustaining 
footfall in the town centres..  The additional income that would have been 
generated had been added back in 2020/21 in the form of efficiency 
savings.  It was queried whether the proposed charges would be in place for 
a period of two years.

The difference in the costs of removing bed bugs and ants was queried and 
a response would be circulated.

Any other comments regarding the proposed fees and charges be conveyed 
to the Executive Councillor direct.

Reference was made to the work of the Climate Change Working Group, 
and it was requested that it would be useful if how the process for making 
changes and budget implications could be presented at the next meeting on 
25 February.  The complexities of costing climate change initiatives was 
acknowledged. The Leader confirmed that the ‘quick wins’ discussed at the 
last meeting of the group had been included in the budget.

An increase in the amount of funding made available for drain cleaning was 
discussed, and DCC had been requested to increase the cleaning of drains 
in some problem areas.

With reference to the support for the completion of the off road route for the 
Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington Trails (para 
2.7, page 172), it was clarified that this was to provide access from Buxton 
to the trails and that the creation of a Buxton – Matlock rail link was 
supported.

RESOLVED:

That Corporate Select Committee support the following recommendations to 
Council:

 Approves the General Fund Budget for 2020/21 as detailed in 
Appendix A (section 8)

 Approves the revised Medium Term Financial Plan (2020/21 to 
2023/24) as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital 
Programme (attached at Annex A)

 Approves the Capital Strategy as set out in Appendix B

 Approves the updated Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
Forecast as detailed in Appendix C

 Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2020/21 as detailed in 
Appendix D, subject to the amendment in respect of the parking 
charges at Wye Street Car Park;Page 5



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 10 February 2020

4

 Approves the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2020/21, 
providing the authority to procure based on procurement activity 
detailed in Appendix E

 A Band D Council Tax of £195.40 for 2020/21 (an increase of 1.9% 
from 2019/20)

 HRA charges as follows:
o Dwellings rents to increase by an average of 2.7%from 

£69.40to £71.45 average per week (average rent takes into 
account new tenancies where formula rent is charged)

o Garage rents to be increased by 5% from £6.79 to £7.13 
average per week

o Other charges including service charges to increase by a 
maximum of 5% for current tenants

o Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed and the 
2020/21 charges is based on the 2019/20 estimated costs and 
the 2018/29 actual fuel usage / prices, charged on an 
individual scheme basis

 Notes the Chief Finance Officer’s view that the level of reserves are 
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances 
in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A Annex E)

20/48 BUSINESS RATES RELIEF POLICY AND COUNCIL TAX DISCOUNT 
POLICY
(Agenda Item 9)

The Committee considered the updated Business Rates Relief Policy and 
the Council Tax Reductions and Levies Policy.  

The Business Rates Relief Policy had been updated to remove and reliefs 
that were no longer relevant and to also reflect the changes Government 
has implemented since 1 April 2020.  An analysis of the total business rates 
payable, net of reliefs had been undertaken on Buxton, Glossop and New 
Mills.  The Council Tax reductions and levies policy, in line with the 
Council’s Empty Property Strategy proposed to increase the empty property 
levy chargeable on empty property as set out in paragraph 3.6 of the report.

Discussion ensured around holiday homes and holiday lets, the wish to 
address the number of empty properties and communicating the proposed 
increase in empty property levies.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive be recommended to approve the updated Business 
Rates Relief Policy and the Council Tax Reductions and Levies Policy.

20/49 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 16)

A report around Customer Services would be submitted to the next meeting.  
Page 6



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 10 February 2020

5

It was requested that the work programmes for all Select Committee be 
forwarded to Corporate Select Committee in future.

RESOVLED:

That, subject to the above addition, the Select Committee Work Programme 
be noted.

20/50 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972

20/51 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 12)

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2019 be 
approved as a correct record.

20/52 AES PHASE 3 FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMISSIONING 
STRUCTURE
(Agenda Item 13)

The Committee considered the Alliance Environmental Services (AES) – 
Phase 3 – Transfer of Services – Financial Arrangements and proposed 
Client Commissioning Team Structure and made recommendations to the 
Executive.

20/53 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HOGSHAWS
(Agenda Item 14)

This item had been withdrawn and was not considered at the meeting.

20/54 MARKET STREET DEPOT - THIS REPORT HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN 
AND WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 15)

This item was withdrawn and was not considered at the meeting.

The meeting concluded at 7.45 pm

CHAIR

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee

13th July 2020

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – COVID-19 Impact on Services and Associated Recovery Action

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to identify the impact of COVID-19 on service 
delivery and note the plans that are being put in place for recovery.

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee:

 Note the details of the Council’s recovery to the COVID-19 pandemic as 
outlined in the report

 Support the proposed recovery plans outlined in the report
 Identify any areas of activity which require further consideration 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Whilst some elements of the COVID-19 response continue to be ongoing, a 
recovery response was initiated so services would be ready as lockdown 
restrictions began to be eased. Work therefore commenced in the planning of 
the Council’s recovery in late April. 

3.2 The proposed response has been categorised into five work streams. These 
work streams are:  

TITLE: COVID-19 Recovery – Reinstating Services, 
Financial Recovery & Positive Legacy 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Anthony McKeown – Leader
Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICERS: Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental Health
Claire Hazeldine – Executive Director (Finance & 
Customer Services)
Tanya Cooper – Head of OD & Transformation

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 Reinstating services;
 Economic recovery;
 Community recovery;
 Financial recovery; and 
 Taking advantage of the positive legacy.

3.3 The purpose of this Corporate Select Committee Report is to consider the 
recovery process as it has been developing so far for the following work 
streams relative to this committee’s area of activity:

 Reinstatement of Services,
 Financial Recovery,
 Positive Legacy.

3.4 The report sets out the recovery work that has been undertaken to date and 
the planned work going forward. The Committee is encouraged to highlight 
any areas that require further consideration.

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependant upon effective 
delivery of services in line with the targets established in the Council’s 
performance framework.

4.2 Concerning the impact of COVID-19 on performance indicators, in a small 
number of cases, the effect has been positive, e.g. carbon emissions, social 
media activity.  The overall position, however, can be summarised as follows:

 Negative impact – 63%
 No Impact – 28%
 Positive impact – 9%

4.3 There will also be disruption to the individual actions committed in each of the 
service plans to deliver the priority actions set out in the Corporate Plan. 

4.4 It has been agreed to bring forward the annual review of the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Plan to begin in July.  The impact on service plan 
performance and priority actions will need to be understood in more detail 
alongside this to ensure that this review is effective.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage.

6. Implications

Page 10



6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The Council has been and will continue to support agencies in ensuring 
compliance with social distancing regulations including the monitoring of 
parks and open spaces and housing complexes.

6.2 Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working 
arrangements for the Council’s employees.

The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working 
practices:

 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the 

additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g. 
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support 
for vulnerable people etc.

The Council has maintained and continues to maintain a good dialogue with 
staff representatives and trade unions and they have and continue to be 
supportive of the Councils approach.

The Council must now establish a recovery plan that ensures the safety of 
staff as we look to reinstate services.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

It is particularly important during the current crisis to ensure the 
safeguarding of our most vulnerable residents. It is also noted that the scope 
of vulnerabilities has widened from the usual cohort of individuals to include 
financial health/clinical and the impact of isolation, especially for those with 
care and support needs.  The Council cannot deliver such a comprehensive 
and flexible support package on its own.

A risk based approach has therefore been developed to balance the need to 
bolster the community and neighbourhood efforts and managing any risks to 
the individuals most at risk of their vulnerabilities being exploited.  This 
approach is aligned to and supported by the County Council and the NHS 
response.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) will need to be developed it identify 
specific implication for protected groups moving forward.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The crisis is having a significant financial impact on the Council’s General 
Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The financial impact is arising from 

6.4

Page 11



additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and 
organisationally, lost income and savings targets that will not be met within 
the same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

Costs and reductions in income are being monitored and updated on an 
ongoing basis in line with a full financial risk assessment. Details of the 
potential impact have been presented in a separate report.

The financial impact on the Council's General Fund in 2020/21 is currently 
predicted to be up to £2.8m and for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is 
up to £0.3m – this will be continually reviewed via the quarterly reporting 
process. This impact will be partially offset by emergency government 
funding of approximately £960,000. Government have also announced a 
further funding package on 2nd July.   With this government support, it is 
anticipated that the financial effect on the current financial year will be able 
to be managed with the use of the Authority's contingency reserves.  
The longer term impact will be reviewed via an early update of the medium 
Term Financial Plan. 

6.5 Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory 
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic. These are 
highlighted throughout the report.

16.6 Climate Change
The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of 
carbon reduction, including:

 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building 

closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.

It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of 
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on 
the climate change challenge.

Although there is a positive environmental impact on the borough due to 
reduced emissions, there has been an increase in environmental crime 
which the Council is continuing to monitor and enforce if necessary.

6.7 External Consultation
The implementation of the Council’s recovery plans will need to include 
extensive engagement with residents and communities.

The Council has consulted with and have agreed the Risk Assessments for 
staff returning to work with union representatives.

Page 12



6.8  Risk Assessment
The pandemic has resulted in an number of risks that need to be assessed 
and managed these include:

 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community 

support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to 

due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 

problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic 

support.

Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation 
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.

NEIL RODGERS
Executive Director (Place)

Background Papers Contact details

Tanya Cooper – Head of OD & 
Transformation

Claire Hazeldine Executive Director 
(Finance & Customer Services) , 

Alicia Patterson – Head of 
Environmental Health

Page 13



7 Introduction & Background

7.1 At its meeting held on 16th June the Executive considered a report which 
detailed the Council’s response to COVID-19 and provided an initial outline of 
the plans that are being put in place for recovery.

7.2 Whilst some elements of the COVID-19 response continue to be ongoing, a 
recovery response was also needed as lockdown restrictions began to be 
eased. Work therefore commenced in the planning of the Council’s recovery 
in late April. 

7.3 The proposed response has been categorised into five work streams. These 
work streams are:  

 Reinstating services;
 Economic recovery;
 Community recovery;
 Financial recovery; and 
 Taking advantage of the positive legacy.

7.4 The recovery process will need to be a significant focus for the Council in both 
the short and longer term. A large amount of decision-making will 
consequently flow from this. The Executive will regularly need to consider 
both changes in and the implementation of policy to address the impact on 
residents and communities. Similarly the work programmes for the Council’s 
Select Committees needs to reflect the recovery and involve the engagement 
of all councillors in this significant programme of work. 

7.5 As a starting point it is was agreed that each of the Select Committees receive 
a report on each of the work streams that are relative to their area of business 
at the first cycle of meetings that follow the reintroduction of meetings.

7.6 The purpose of this report is to consider the recovery process for the following 
work streams relative to this committee’s area of activity:

 Reinstatement of Services.
 Financial Recovery.
 Positive Legacy.

8 Reinstating Services  

8.1 The key issues that were initially identified for this work stream are set out 
below: 

 Re-establishing a baseline of current service provision;
 Planning for re-providing services that have been stopped during the 

lockdown; 
 Planning for a relaxed but continuing lockdown;

Page 14



 Dealing with backlogs of work e.g. food safety inspections; housing 
repairs;

 Planning for increased service demands e.g. housing benefits;
 Planning for new service demands;
 Restarting projects after the enforced delays; and
 Rehousing homelessness clients

Impact of COVID-19 on Service Delivery

8.2 This work has involved all Heads of Service and has been structured by them 
all identifying the following: 

 Detail of the service activity or projects that have been affected as a result 
of COVID-19,

 The impact on the service/project e.g. full service suspension, delay in 
delivery,

 The risks to the Council should the service/project not return to normal 
promptly,

 Any anticipated backlog of work as a result of returning to normal e.g. 
applications to process, visits to make,

 Provisions that are in place to deal with expected increase in demand or 
backlog when services can restart,

 Additional resources or work arounds that will be required to deal with a 
return to normality, the increased demand or backlog during recovery.

8.3 The report to Executive set out the impact of the response to COVID-19 on 
the Council’s services. The Council has also supported a number of new 
functions that have been required as a result of the national response to the 
pandemic.

8.4 Services are to be reintroduced gradually in line with national guidance and 
this process has already commenced.

8.5 Heads of Service have also completed risk assessments for the return of 
services. In reinstating services the Council has reiterated its commitment to 
work safely in a statement outlining the five steps that have been undertaken 
to ensure safer working, which will be promoted and displayed in Council 
buildings. The steps are:

 We have carried out COVID-19 risk assessments and shared the results 
with the people who work here.

 We have cleaning, handwashing and hygiene procedures in line with 
guidance.

 We have taken all reasonable steps to help people work from home.
 We have taken all reasonable steps to maintain a 2m distance in the 

workplace.
 Where people cannot be 2m apart, we have done everything practical 

to manage transmission risk.

Page 15



8.6 The impact on each of the Councils’ services is summarised in Appendix A. 
The additional service functions are also detailed along with the recovery work 
that has already commenced.

Key Recovery Work

8.7 The Council supported the multi-agency work that was necessary for the re-
opening of town centres on 15th June. This work included:

 The development of re-opening plans for each of our towns including 
Buxton, Glossop, Chapel, New Mills and Whaley Bridge and has also 
included Castleton - this has involved significant input from the county 
council with their highways responsibilities – these are still a work in 
progress and finalisation of them will include consultation with ward 
members.  

 Planning for the re-opening of public conveniences and markets,
 Developing measures to ensure that our car parks operate safely,
 Discussions with the town and parish councils to include their input,
 Discussions with other stakeholders.

8.8 Plans are currently being implemented for the reinstatement of the housing 
repairs service. Work has commenced on refurbishing void properties for the 
housing for homeless residents who were in temporary accommodation, of 
the 36 households in this category 31 have now been accommodated in either 
the Council’s housing stock or private rented accommodation.

8.9 Managers have been working very closely with Parkwood Leisure with 
regards to the re-opening / recovery plans for the leisure centres and Pavilion 
Gardens. The Government originally advised Active UK (the organisation that 
represents the leisure industry nationally) that leisure centres - gyms (not 
pools) should prepare to re-open on the 4th July. However latest guidance 
does not support this so further guidance on this issue is awaited. 

8.10 Effective of the 18th June, Parkwood reopened takeaway services from the 
ice cream parlour at pavilion gardens. Further reopening plans for the kiosk 
and train are being considered.

8.11 The Council has been supported in discussions with Parkwood by leisure 
consultants FMG which has been paid for by Sport England and the plan 
emerging is for a phased approach. This will almost certainly have a cost and 
also could impact on staffing arrangements at the facilities. There will be a 
need to further report to councillors on the detail of these implications. 

8.12 All member meetings are now being re-established on a virtual platform, the 
Executive, Development Control and select committee meetings have now all 
recommenced on a virtual basis.

8.13 There has been significant progress with planning for the opening offices and 
receptions. Work is well progressed to ensure all buildings are COVID secure 
this includes signage, screens etc.

Page 16



8.14 Playgrounds, outdoor gyms and outdoor sports facilities will all reopen on the 
4th July, following the installation of signage, and a full safety inspection of 
each site and equipment.

8.15 Installation of a new play facility at Whitfield is due to start in mid July (and will 
take 2 weeks to complete), this project was due to be delivered at Easter but 
delayed due to COVID-19.

8.16 The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a number of significant changes to 
the way the workforce delivers services. Additional requirements for PPE 
have been assessed and actioned. There will be a backlog of annual leave to 
be taken as some holidays have been cancelled during the pandemic.

8.17 As more businesses will be able to open from July 4th following new 
guidelines from the Government there will be significant changes in customer 
numbers, maintaining social distancing, new queuing rules and making sure 
hygiene and hand washing measures are followed.

8.18 Businesses that can re-open provided they adhere to COVID Secure 
guidelines include:

 Pubs, bars, cafes, restaurants,
 Hairdressers and barbers,
 Holiday accommodation such as hotels, hostels, bed and breakfast 

accommodation, holiday apartments or homes, cottages or bungalows, 
campsites, caravan parks or boarding houses. However shared sleeping 
spaces (i.e. dormitory rooms) should not open to any groups, except those 
travelling within the current government guidance on social mixing outside 
of household groups,

 Some leisure facilities and tourist attractions – this includes outdoor gyms 
and playgrounds, cinemas, museums, galleries, theme parks, arcades and 
bingo halls,

 Libraries, social clubs, places of worship and community centres.

8.19 The Council’s communications effort has been stepped up to make residents 
and potential visitors aware of the situation. The Council has attempted where 
possible to have details of the shops and businesses that are open and 
details of opening times. The communications messages continue to stress 
the national narrative about the requirements of social distancing in line with 
national messaging.

Pavement Licences 

8.20 Pavement licences are presently granted primarily under Part 7A of the 
Highways Act 1980. The fee varies between local authorities. The new 
process provides a cheaper, easier and quicker way for businesses to obtain 
a licence. The fee for applying for a licence under the new process, is capped 
at £100 and the consultation period is 5 working days (excluding public 
holidays). It is currently a minimum of 28 calendar days under Part 7A.

Page 17



8.21 This new process introduces a streamlined and cheaper route for businesses 
such as cafes, restaurants and bars to secure a licence to place furniture on 
the highway. This will support them to operate safely while social distancing 
measures remain in place. This will provide much needed income over the 
summer months and protect as many hospitality jobs as possible.

8.22 Business which currently use (or proposes to use) premises for the sale of 
food or drink for consumption (on or off the premises) can apply for a licence. 
Businesses that are eligible include: public houses, cafes, bars, restaurants, 
snack bars, coffee shops, and ice cream parlours.

8.23 A licence permits the business to use furniture placed on the highway to sell 
or serve food or drink and/or allow it to be used by people for consumption of 
food or drink supplied from, or in connection with the use of the premises.

8.24 If the local authority does not determine the application before the end of the 
determination period (which is 5 working days beginning with the first day 
after the public consultation period (excluding public holidays), the licence is 
deemed to have been granted for a year (but not beyond 30 September 2021) 
and the business can place the proposed furniture such as tables and chairs 
within the area set out in the application for the purpose or purposes proposed

Test & Trace 

8.25 Local Authorities will be given funding from the County Council to develop 
tailored outbreak control plans, working with local NHS, PHE and other 
stakeholders.

8.26 Work plans are in progress, and these plans are focusing on identifying and 
containing potential outbreaks in places such as workplaces, housing 
complexes, care homes and schools.

8.27 As part of this work, local authorities will also need to ensure testing capacity 
is deployed effectively to high-risk locations. Local authorities will work closely 
with the test and trace service, local NHS, PHE, County and other partners to 
achieve this.

8.28 Data on the virus’s spread will be shared with local authorities through the 
Joint Biosecurity Centre to inform local outbreak planning, so teams 
understand how the virus is moving, working with national government where 
necessary to access the testing and tracing capabilities of the new service.

8.29 Local communities, organisations and individuals will also be encouraged to 
follow government guidance and assist those self-isolating in their area who 
need help. This will include encouraging neighbours to offer support and 
identifying and working with relevant community groups.

Planning System Changes 

Page 18



8.30 The Government recently announced the new Planning Bill which is making 
its way through parliament. It includes a number of measures including:

 Automatic extensions of planning permissions due to expire to 1st April 
2021;

 Speeding up planning appeals by allowing the Planning Inspectorate to 
use more than one procedure; 

 A fast track route for developers to apply to the planning authority to 
amend conditions or approved documents setting out restrictions on 
construction working hours. The temporary amendments expire on a date 
set by the planning authority no later than 1 April 2021.

8.31 The extension of planning permissions is to be welcomed and will be 
beneficial for our housing land supply. It is not anticipated that any of the 
changes will have any significant implications for the way that the Council 
operates its planning functions. Some minor changes and new processes will 
be required for the fast track condition amendments but these can easily be 
accommodated within existing functions and no significant resource 
implications are anticipated. 

Service Backlogs and Proposed Action

8.32 Housing Repairs - There is a backlog of over 1,000 non-urgent jobs housing 
repair jobs that have built up during the lockdown, plans are being put in place 
to commence the rescheduling of this outstanding work.

8.33 Food safety - There is a current backlog of 150 routine inspections and 40 
new business inspections that have built up during the lockdown. Plans are 
now in place to commence inspections.

8.34 Planning applications – Now that the virtual meeting process has been 
implemented, the normal cycle of planning meetings will be reintroduced 
which will provide for more regular processing of applications. The new 
arrangements will need to be considered in more detail to consider whether 
changes need to be made to reduce the length of agendas and the possibility 
of some additional meetings may need to be considered.

9 Financial Recovery

9.1 The development of the recovery response in this stream has been 
underpinned by the assessment of the overall financial impact of COVID-19. 
The key priorities that have been identified as:

 Developing revised financial plans take account of the financial impact and 
plan for the ongoing implications;

 Accounting for the significant treasury impact e.g. on reserves and 
ongoing cash flow;

 Identifying and planning for the additional costs of new service demands; 
and

 Providing for the additional costs arising from recovery.

Page 19



9.2 The recent Executive Report identified the forecast immediate financial 
consequences of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 financial position.  A risk matrix 
was completed identifying potential financial risks – which were then rated 
dependent on current status:-

 
Rating Description

IMPACT EMERGING Costs already being incurred

IMPACT LIKELY Costs likely to occur – as yet unidentified

POTENTIAL RISK Remains a risk – not emerged to date

9.3 Each risk was then reviewed and an attempt made at forecasting the financial 
impact (where possible) - an ‘impact range’ of LOW – MEDIUM – HIGH has 
been applied taking into account length of lockdown and recovery period

9.4 A summary of the current estimated financial impact of COVID 19 on the 
2020/21 budget position is shown below:-

IMPACT RANGEHPBC - GF
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     646,405                 964,463          1,516,740 

IMPACT LIKELY                     332,870                 566,465             851,173 

POTENTIAL RISK 72,765                 191,062             472,648 

TOTAL                1,052,040              1,721,990          2,840,561 

IMPACT RANGEHPBC - HRA
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     4,320                      6,320                   8,320 

IMPACT LIKELY (33,400) 13,200 84,800

POTENTIAL RISK                  82,500                  132,000                198,000 

TOTAL 53,420                  151,520                291,120 

9.5 In terms of funding the financial impact of COVID-19, the Council has received 
two allocations of funding from Government - £959,883 in total.  In addition, 
the reserves position allows for some drawdown during 2020/21 before 
reaching the ‘minimum contingency level’ as set out in the MTFP.  Based on 
the ‘high’ impact forecast, this would still leave an amount to be funded:

Page 20



HPBC (GF)            
(£)

‘High’ Impact 2,840,561
Government Funding (959,883)
Reserves drawdown (to ‘minimum contingency’)* (1,600,000)
Remaining shortfall 280,678

*this may be subject to change dependent on the final 2019/20 outturn position (see separate 
report on this agenda)

9.6 On 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government  (MHCLG) announced a further package 
of financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of 
support:

COVID-19 related expenditure - A further £500 million non ring-fenced 
allocation - taking the total support provided by government to £4.3 billion 

Irrecoverable income loss - recognises that Councils have lost income from 
sales, fees and charges since the start of the pandemic and looks to 
reimburse 75p in every £1 of irrecoverable losses (losses over and above 5% 
of planned income).

Losses in tax revenue - Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather 
than the usual one

9.7 There is more information on the funding package within the Financial 
Planning Process report (a separate report on this agenda).  The latest 
funding package will hopefully assist the Council’s financial position further, 
covering the deficit and reducing the requirement on reserves to fund the 
shortfall.

9.8 The HRA has built up significant cash balances in recent years and therefore 
is in a position to offset the immediate financial impact.

9.9 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the 
impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use 
of reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will 
have on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  Therefore, to understand 
and forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term 
response, a review of the MTFP as approved in February 2020 will 
commence in July. 

9.10 The Financial Planning report (a separate report on this agenda) focuses on 
the process for progressing the MTFP update. 

9.11 On completion of the MTFP update, it is likely that an updated Treasury 
Management Strategy will be presented to Audit Committee in September. 

Page 21



10 Taking Advantage of the Positive Legacy

10.1 The purpose of this stream of work is to ensure that where there has been a 
positive impact on the Council's service delivery this is reflected in the 
proposals for recovery. For example the pandemic has prompted a wave of 
critical reflection with issues of sustainability and longer term consumer 
behaviour being considered in greater depth. This may result in a step forward 
in the following areas:

 Green Infrastructure delivery,
 Digital infrastructure,
 Transport e.g. Increase in walking and cycling to work.

10.2 These will need to be key considerations for the Council’s Climate Change 
Working Group.

10.3 Other key opportunities that have been identified for this work stream are:

 Realising future benefits from the remote / home working arrangements 
that have worked effectively,

 Realising the benefits from the additional ‘channel shift’ – access to 
services,

 Reassessing priorities in light of the new demands for services,
 Using new business contact understanding to realise local procurement 

ambitions,
 Opportunity to remove unnecessary bureaucratic governance 

arrangements,
 Continue the enhanced communication dialogue with partners.

10.4 The following areas are already under investigation:

Action Possible output
Review internal processes that have already 
had to change as a result of home working / 
office closures.

Identify processes that have been forced to 
change and already improved as a result of 
COVID.

We want to retain these improved working 
practices, so they are not disregarded in the 
future, and an old way of working re-
introduced.

Review of other internal service processes to 
remove manual, paper based processes that 
have created hurdles during lockdown.

Opportunity to positively steer our Digital 
Transformation direction further.

Goal to digitise where possible & needed to 
improve overall efficiency - Reduced manual/ 
paper processes will also improve service area 
efficiency. 

Introduce electronic only copies of planning 
applications to Parish and Town Councils.

Page 22



Action Possible output
Reduce our staff carbon footprint (travelling / 
printing) by improved & increased use of 
technology & a delivery of a digital workplace

Opportunity to embrace this digital direction 
with implementation of Microsoft 365 suite, 
enabling access for Teams, Sharepoint, 
Stream etc.

Video conferencing for staff meetings will result 
in reduction in travel to attend meetings and 
participation in online training courses.

Reduce Post Distribution - we can be more 
green and generate less paper. And reduction 
in collection and distribution of post frequencies 
= reduction in contract costs.

Increase the number of services that 
customers can make payments online for.

Drive & promote online payments/alternative 
payment channels.

Potential to reduce no. of chip and pin 
machines on receptions = Consider impact on 
reception opening hours, agree to removal of 
existing (and costly) cash/cheque channels. 

This will enable us to promote online 
payments/DDs as customers will choose to 
transact with us in different ways.

Improve/enhance council functions/ services 
that currently available online to public.

Review of transactions/services that are not 
currently available online (Waste / Repairs / 
Rents / Pest Control / Licensing / NDR) and 
make improvements to those that are already 
(CT / Benefits).

Analyse queries that are/were historically 
handled face-to-face (if not since lockdown, 
why?).

Drive 'do it online' - Delivery of more end-to-
end transactions for customers to self-serve, 
this will include/improve automation of back 
office processes.

Develop OD strategy & ICT / Digital 
Transformation strategy enabling Agile 
working as a focus.

Increase in Agile working and access to flexible 
working arrangements, skills & structure to 
support new ways of working – Increased 
productivity from homeworking.

New / amended policy required - will ensure 
aligned with corporate plans. 

Understand our new way of working, assessing 
the IT requirements to support agile working

Virtualisation of Committee Meetings Hold & stream public meetings via Teams

Issue of Committee Reports and introduction of 
information digests to members

Page 23



APPENDIX A
COVID-19 Impact on Services and Associated Recovery Action

Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
HR  Recruitment suspended

 Training suspended
 Staff Appraisals / PEPs postponed

 Set up and co-ordinate staff testing for C19
 Assess all workforce for vulnerability to C19  

and make provisions for ongoing safety of all 
staff

 Liaison and agreement with Unions for all 
changes to working practices

 Postpone/rearrange all planned training
 Co-ordinate the Council participation with the 

LRF

 Working with Recovery Group to ensure safe 
return 

 Advertisement of vacancies internally 
recommenced

ICT  ICT projects delayed
 Mobile phone upgrades postponed

 Set up and roll out homeworking provision for 
all staff

 Set up and roll out provisions for contact 
centre to operate remotely

 Investigation and implementation of virtual 
meeting capability

 Re-commenced office 365 and windows 10 
project

Communications  Significantly Increased communication activity  Participation in LRF work streams  A communications plan has  been developed 
as part of the recovery phase.

OD & Transformation

Performance  C19 Impact on performance  Monitor and report  the Impact on 
performance

 Process to revisit targets and project delivery 
has commenced

 Audit  2020/21 Audit Plan delayed
 Recommendations follow-up suspended
 Annual Governance Statement delayed 

 Business grants monitoring/checking  Revised plan to be agreed
 Follow up of recommendations has now 

commenced

Direct Services Housing Repairs  Planned housing maintenance, work 
postponed 

 Service focussed on priority and emergency 
repairs along with a limited amount of void 
work 

 Focus has been on prioritising emergency work 
and ensuring that both staff and residents 
remain safe and can respond where necessary

 Risk assessments updated and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Toolbox talks developed, implemented and 
rolled out to all key staff

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations again on 
routine repairs by the end of July

P
age 24



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Community Safety  CCTV cameras upgrade and monitoring station 

upgrade delayed
 Anti social behaviour response
 Partnerships and planned projects delayed
 Environmental enforcement and  

investigations limited

 Risk assessments in progress and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations again on 
routine  Enforcement Duties  by the end of 
July

Democratic Services  Member meetings postponed  Investigation and implementation of virtual 
meeting capability

 Support Councillors to access and use TEAMS 
for virtual meetings

 Virtual meetings implemented

Communities

Community Support  Support to vulnerable people  Continue to support the communities
Legal Elections  Elections postponed  Virtual meeting capability

 Support given to other service areas (benefits)
 Canvas to commence

Food Safety
Pollution
Housing disrepair

 Restrictions on compliance visits
 Suspension of inspections/monitoring

 New requirements under the emergency 
legislation in particular around enforced 
closures.

 Increased Multi-agency working

 Risk assessments updated and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations for routine 
inspections and enforcement  by Mid  July

Licensing  Full suspension of enforcement visits and 
multi agency visits

 Pavement Licences  Risk assessments updated and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations for routine 
enforcement by Mid  July

Environmental Health

Land Charges  Dramatic reduction in local searches received  Additional Planning updates and data cleansing  The Service is operational however service 
demands have reduced considerably due to 
the property market issues, however we are 
now seeing the market recover slowly.

 Personal Searches will resume once the 
Reception Points reopen – End July/Aug  

P
age 25



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Leisure  Leisure centres and the Pavilion Gardens 

facility were closed in late March.
 Financial support provided to leisure centre 

provider Parkwood 
 Playgrounds closed,

 All leisure centres remain closed as Gov’t has 
not yet permitted their reopening. Reopening 
plans have been produced by Parkwood but 
until Gov’t announce a reopening date these 
can’t be enacted. The financial support 
currently being provided to Parkwood is 
insufficient to cover a reopening of all the SM 
sites. A report is being produced for members 
to enable the plans/options to be considered.

 Effective of 18th June, Parkwood reopened 
takeaway services from the ice cream parlour 
at pavilion gardens. Further reopening plans 
of the kiosk and train are being considered 
currently. It is unlikely that the tea rooms and 
events spaces will reopen until late 20/21.

 Playgrounds, outdoor gyms and outdoor 
sports facilities will all reopen on the 4th July, 
following the installation of signage, and a full 
safety inspection of each site and equipment.

 Installation of a new play facility at Whitfield 
is due to start in mid July ( and will take 2 
weeks to complete), this project was due to 
be delivered at Easter but delayed due to C19.

Waste collection, Street 
Cleansing & Grounds 
Maintenance

 Capacity reduced on street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance to support waste 
collection 

 Increase in fly-tipping  Increase in fly tipping 
 Waste and recycling services are all operating 

normally. Staff from other services are no 
longer being used to supplement crews. We 
are continuing to see higher than normal 
tonnages of recyclables presented for 
collection – averaging +26% higher than 
normal at this time of year. 

 Street cleansing – we are still seeing higher 
than normal volumes fly tipping despite the 
reopening of HWRC’s. Litter levels is 
problematic in our parks and open spaces and 
higher than normal.

 Grounds maintenance functions are all 
operating normally.

Service Commissioning

Cemeteries  Services are operating as normal. We have 
seen no increases in demand.

P
age 26



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Business Support  Additional support required by local 

businesses 
 Implementation of Local Discretionary Business 

Grant scheme which will involve distributing a 
further £1.2m of financial support to eligible 
businesses.

 Work with partners to re open the town 
centres

Regeneration

Markets  Indoor and outdoor markets in Glossop have 
remained closed during the lockdown period.

 Safe re-opening of Glossop outdoor market – 
signage, cleaning materials, information to 
traders. Temporary relocation of indoor 
traders to outdoor market

Public Conveniences  Public toilets across the borough closed  Additional requirement s for cleaning
 Additional alteration works may be required

 Phased reintroduction from 15th June

Commercial Properties  The Council has been engaging with its 
commercial tenants on a one to one basis to 
provide support based on the individual 
circumstances of the businesses. 

 Payment plans will be agreed with tenants for 
any arrears that have built up to support 
tenants.

Car Parks  The arrangements in the Council’s car parks 
have been maintained strictly in line with the 
British Parking Association guidance.. 

 The Council has recognised the national permit 
scheme for health and care workers and have 
also extended it locally 

 Enforcement is ongoing. 
 Parking machines are being routinely 

sanitised and signage erected.

Assets

Housing Property  The Council’s annual gas safety checks are still 
being undertaken to the statutory timescales, 
although are subject to workarounds and 
changes to working practice as needed by the 
circumstances of individual tenants

 Compliance related activities are being 
undertaken where possible. Some delays at 
sheltered schemes due to risk to residents.

 Kitchen Programme is being undertaken at a 
rate of 4-5 properties a week (much slower 
than pre-covid due to need to re-profile and 
survey). Recommenced on 1st June. 

 Bathroom, Aids and Adaptations, Roofing and 
Roofline all we approved at Exec last week. 
Call-in ends today, so work will now begin in 
mobilising those contracts. 

 Windows and Doors is due to start on 20th 
July. 

 Work to Queens Court roof has 
recommenced. 

 Structural works project is almost complete. 

Capital Works  Capital projects postponed  Works brought forward where buildings have 
been closed.

 Capital programme being re-prioritised due to 
risks and opportunities.

Facilities / Public Buildings  Public Buildings closed to public, open to staff.  Additional cleaning undertaken by caretaking 
staff. 

 Reactive repair and maintenance works have 
been undertaken at buildings whist “closed”.

 Additional cleaning routing and resource will 
be required if more staff are to return to the 
buildings. 

 One way systems agreed
 Hand sanitiser stations erected
 Work space, meeting room, facilities to be 

restricted to comply with social distancing. 
 Receptions re-configured.

P
age 27



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Development Services Planning Applications  Restrictions on site visits 

 Processing issues due to postponement of 
committee decision making processes. 

 Virtual meetings now implemented
 Implement new legislation

Finance Procurement  Some procurement activity placed on hold as 
consequence of suspended services / inability 
to deliver projects during lockdown.  

 Payment of the Small Business and Retail, 
Hospitality and Leisure Grant Schemes 

 Planned procurement activity recommenced
 Additional procurement activity/support in 

relation to the COVID-19  recovery process 

Finance  Closedown of accounts delayed.  Additional financial planning  workload
 Completion of Government financial returns
 Support with business grants process

 Early update of the MTFP report to identify 
potential  longer-term financial issues

 Close budget monitoring of 2020/21 position
 Statement of Accounts draft produced July, 

external audit aiming to complete end of 
September

Revenues & Benefits Revenues  Flexible payment plans for council tax
 Flexible payment plans for business rates 
 Recovery action temporarily suspended
 Increased Council Tax & Business Rates arrears

 Rebilling of business rates due to additional 
reliefs

 Coordinating the business grants process
 Assessing Council tax hardship applications

 Post-event assurance in respect of grant 
payments

 Recommence recovery action
 Assess collection rates impact

Benefits  Rebilling of eligible LCTRS claimants 
 Increase in the number of council tax support 

and housing benefit cases

 Rebilling of LCTRS due to additional £150 
award

 Monitor impact of a recession on benefit 
workload

Housing  Temporary accommodation made available to 
prevent/relieve homelessness as per MHCLG 
guidance

 Rent recovery action temporarily suspended
 All tenancy management visits suspended 

 The Carelink service has implemented welfare 
calls 

  “Everyone In” response in respect of 
homelessness – of 63 placements 9 remain as 
at 29.6.20

 Housing Allocations recommenced 12.5.520

 Support remaining homeless placements 
homelessness with permanent housing 
options / reduce use of temporary 
accommodation

 Recommence rent recovery action  with 
additional steps to ensure vulnerability due to 
Covid captured

 Recommence FRA visits to communal blocks
Customer Services  Closure of Council offices in Buxton, Gamesley, 

Glossop 
 Appointments by telephone have been offered 

if required.  
 Call centre staff able to handle calls from 

home    
 Service access diverted to the on-line and 

telephone access channels.
 Increase in the number of service requests 

that are being accessed through the Council’s 
website. 

 Post and Print – reduced volumes as service 
areas communicate electronically 

 Separate dedicated call numbers were set up 
to deal with the new functions such as 
supporting businesses and vulnerable people.

 Additional webforms created to enable 
customers to self serve 

 Central post and print function handling 
incoming and external mail and printing – 
scanning docs to service areas 

 

 Re-open receptions, but consider changes to 
the provision of these facilities

 Expecting increase in volumes of enquiries , 
change in circumstances , tenancy 
enquiries/repairs /business’

 Continue with current post/print 
arrangements –removal of office equipment 
 

 
 

P
age 28



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Corporate Select Committee

13 July 2020

TITLE: Fourth Quarter Financial, Prourement and 
Performance Review

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon - Interim Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

 Appendices Attached 
 Appendix A – 2019/20 – Fourth Quarter Financial Report
 Appendix B – 2019/20 – Fourth Quarter Procurement Report 
 Appendix C – 2019/20 – Fourth Quarter Performance Report

1. Reason for the Report

1.1     The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth 
Quarter 2019/20”)

2. Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee: 

 Note the Fourth Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report; and

 Recommend for approval the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund 
Revenue Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10)

 Recommend for approval the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue 
budget as described in Appendix A (Paragraph 2.13)

 Recommend for approval the proposals to carry forward unspent capital 
budget as set out in Appendix A (Paragraph 6.5 and 7.4)

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after 
considering service activity up to the end of the Third Quarter (i.e. 31st March 
2020). 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520A%2520(11-07-12).doc
SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520B%2520(11-07-12).doc
SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520C%2520(11-07-12).doc


3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

Performance against Budget

 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn for 
2019/20 is an underspend of £295,441.

Efficiency Programme

 The 2019/20 revised efficiency target of £714,000 (General Fund) 
has been exceeded with £867,000 of savings achieved to date.  

Housing Revenue Account

 The Housing Revenue Account is in surplus (against budget) by 
£2,114,450 at the Quarter Four (provisional outturn) stage.

Capital Programme

 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2019/20 as 
revised is £5.33 million.  The outturn is £4.7 million, representing an 
underspend of £0.62 million at year end.

 The HRA Programme for 2019/20 as revised is £2.7 million.  The 
outturn is £2.55 million which represents a £0.15 million 
underspend.

Treasury Management

 Cash investments held at 31st March 2020 totalled £20.5 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2020 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is in surplus by 

£112,079 with a £25,112 surplus on the HRA

Revenue Collection

 98.41% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2020, compared 
to 98.43% for the same period last year.

 98.39% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 2020 
compared with 99.09% for the same period last year.

 At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt over 60 days old 
was £162,981 which compares to £184,465 at 31st March 2020

Appendix A

Page 30



Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

 21 procurement activities were completed 

 The Procurement forward plan includes 67 procurement activities for 
completion/start in 2020/21 (either HPBC only or joint)

 At the 31st March 2020, 67% of procurement activity undertaken was 
on the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of its invoices within 
30 days

Appendix B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:
 64% of the key performance indicators met target, with 49% better 

than target
 The Council received 120 complaints, 325 comments and 119 

compliments in the Fourth Quarter. Repeat complaints and response 
times both on track 

Appendix C

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
 This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's  
Equality and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout 
the report.

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Climate Change
None

Page 31



6.7 Consultation
None

6.8 Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, 
which are identified and explained in the financial report attached 
at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Appendices A-C Keith Pointon
Acting Head of Finance
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

6.4

Page 32



1

APPENDIX A

2019/20

Fourth Quarter 
(Provisional 

Outturn) 
Financial Review

Page 33



2

1. Background and Introduction 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
fourth (and final) such report for 2019/20.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2019/20 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 
considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of 
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast. 

 Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.

 General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.

 HRA Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.

 Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 
investments and borrowings.

 Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 34



3

2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff*) 2019/20 
Budget

Provisional 
Outturn 
2019/20

Variance
Contribution 
to / (Use of) 
Earmarked 
Reserves

Net 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Alliance Leadership Team 412,770 411,188 (1,582) - (1,582)
Audit 96,320 90,778 (5,542) - (5,542)
ICT 581,980 485,830 (96,150) - (96,150)
Human Resources 72,480 49,210 (23,270) - (23,270)
Member Services 195,220 159,299 (35,921) - (35,921)
Property Services 256,560 505,550 248,990 (51,240) 197,750
Benefits 128,280 231,306 103,026 - 103,026
Planning Applications 68,590 5,924 (62,666) 13,975 (48,691)
Building Control 38,270 13,658 (24,612) - (24,612)
Customer Services 492,830 443,126 (49,704) (49,704)
Legal Services 195,010 214,349 19,339 - 19,339
Electoral Services 81,470 139,458 57,988 (93,012) (35,024)
Licensing and Land Charges (317,480) (298,577) 18,903 - 18,903
Regeneration 275,480 320,269 44,789 26,924 71,713
Communities and Cultural 492,470 513,774 21,304 - 21,304
Housing Strategy** 67,930 (50,556) (118,486) 10,268 (108,218)
Transformation 207,420 199,345 (8,075) - (8,075)
Community Safety and Enforcement 118,080 90,655 (27,425) (1,000) (28,425)
Finance Income & Procurement 299,640 313,202 13,562 - 13,562
Corporate Finance* 1,413,940 773,365 (640,575) 174,968 (465,607)
Waste Collection 2,503,460 2,557,906 54,446 (1,999) 52,447
Street Scene 291,350 330,425 39,075 (12,000) 27,075
Leisure Services 206,200 286,279 80,079 32,880 112,959
Horticulture 89,340 44,145 (45,195) (840) (46,035)
Environmental Health 416,070 401,727 (14,343) - (14,343)
      
Net Total of Services 8,683,680 8,231,635 (452,045) 98,925 (353,120)
      
Net Interest 1,569,370 1,457,291 (112,079) (112,079)
 10,253,050 9,688,926 (564,124) 98,925 (465,199)
Funding:     
- external (10,248,040) (10,084,832) 163,208 - 163,208
- reserves contribution to/(from)
     general contingency 1,540 1,540 -
     earmarked (6,550) 98,925 105,475 (98,925) 6,550
     
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (295,441) (295,441) - (295,441)
    

* In previous quarters Staff costs were budgeted and recorded in Finance & Procurement.  They were considered a 
corporate resource to be the main source of savings realised by the Authority’s Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Programme, However to show the true use of resources by individual services it is necessary to include the actual staff  
costs incurred.  Therefore the Quarter Four provisional outturn position includes the actual staff costs (and matching 
budgets) at the service level.

  ** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

Page 35



4

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,253,050 was set for 2019/20.  The table above shows 
how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.3. The projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2019/20 is 
£9,957,609.  This represents a projected surplus for the year of £295,441.

2.4. There are five service areas with a projected significant overspend (>£50,000):

 Property Services (£197,750 overspend); the cost of operating the Council’s 
buildings came in £194,000 over budget. This included £50,000 in additional 
payments to DCC regarding dilapidations; £50,000 arising out of Leisure 
centre works and repairs to Buxton Opera House roof and boiler; £65,000 in 
additional Public Convenience maintenance costs; and £25,000 in additional 
utility costs. Part of this overspend is offset by the use of £51,240 of 
earmarked reserves set aside to support remedial works on a number of the 
Council’s leisure sites (see section 2.7 below). Car parking income ended the 
year with a £56,000 shortfall against budget mainly arising out of reduced 
activity in Buxton town centre car parks. 

 Leisure Services (£112,959 overspend); much of this overspend (£107,000) 
relates to support given to the Pavilion Gardens and Leisure Centre 
management contractors in response to the Covid-19 outbreak  and loss of 
profit claims.  £28,720 of refunded contributions from Active Derbyshire could 
not be utilised in year and has consequently been placed into a reserve 
earmarked for future leisure provision. Other underspends on programmed 
leisure activities make up the balance on the net overspend.

 Regeneration Services (£71,713): this relates to the fall in income following 
the disruption to Glossop markets   

 Housing Benefits (£103,026 overspend); this is a technical overspend 
relating to the uplift in the bad debts provision at year end reflecting 
anticipated future impact of Covid-19 on the Benefits Service.

 Waste Collection (£52,447 overspend); this relates to various over and 
under spends including  the impact of Covid-19 on AES,  a shortfall in 
recycling credits and additional Trade Waste income.

2.5. There are three services with a projected significant underspend:

 ICT (£96,150 underspend); this is made up of savings of £35,000 on 
applications and support contract costs; savings of £35,000 on delayed 
projects; and a technical saving of £25,000 relating to the over -accrual of 
Microsoft licence costs in 2018/19 giving rise to a one-of underspend in 
2019/20.

 Housing Strategy (£108,218 underspend);  operational savings (£53,000)  
in the newly revamped Carelink service have arisen out of better than 
anticipated income levels and lower than expected running costs. In year 
receipt of unbudgeted DCC Second Homes funding have led to an 
underspend (£65,000) in the Housing Needs service.  

Page 36



5

 Corporate Finance (£465,607 underspend)
o £6,000 of the Corporate Finance underspend is subject to a carry 

forward request (section 2.13) relating to risk management work around 
the safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source. This work, which 
was signed off by the Risk Management Group, was due to be carried 
out in 2018 funded by a corporate risk management budget. The work 
will now be completed in 2020.  

o Overachievement against the savings budgeted in the Efficiency Plan 
have generated an in year underspend of £206,000.

o An underspend of £254,000 (net of agency and other costs) was 
recorded against the employee budget due to vacancy savings.

o Savings against the corporate inflation budget amounted to £90,000 at 
the year-end

o An overspend of £20,000 resulted from the Toddbrook Dam emergency; 
equating to the Council’s expenditure threshold under the Bellwin 
Scheme

o A shortfall on income relating to the Buxton Spring Water concession 
resulted in a £86,000 ‘overspend’, largely arising out of the impact of the 
single use plastics issue.

2.6. The £112,079 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8. 

2.7. The level of funding anticipated for the year is £169,758 below  that budgeted due 
to the following:

External Funding (£163,208):
Business Rates Retention (£163,208): 

 Additional retention of £188,100: After the 100% pilot ended, the 2019/20 
budget included a conservative estimate of levy payment savings 
anticipated from the Council’s membership of the Derbyshire business rates 
pool based on the previous pool arrangements – this is estimated to be 
exceeded.

Note: the levy payment savings are dependent on the performance 
of all members of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool. Due to the 
pressures following the Covid-19 outbreak, not all members have 
been able to complete their business rates income draft outturns; 
the reporting deadline to MHCLG has been extended to 31st July 
2020. Therefore the levy payment savings in the Council’s draft 
outturn are based on the latest estimate available and is subject to 
change. An updated draft outturn position on the levy payment 
savings and its effect on the Council’s funding is anticipated in 
August 2020 and any material difference arising from this will be 
considered.

 Offset by reduced retention of £351,308: Section 31 grants due to the 
authority are lower than at budget setting, this relates particularly to Retail 
discount which was estimated on the basis of government criteria for the 
relief at budget setting, but awards are lower in practice due to State Aid 
implications. The shortfall on the general fund from the reduced grant will 
be offset over time by a larger surplus on the collection fund from the 
reduced relief awarded, which will be distributed in future years.

Page 37



6

Use of Reserves (£105,475 contribution)

 The original budget for 2019/20 assumed a contribution of £1,540 in to general 
fund contingency and a £6,550 use of earmarked reserves (Net use of £5,010 
in the year).
 

 The £105,475 variance in reserve usage reported in table 2.1 reflects that 
instead of using the £6,550 in earmarked reserves the Borough was actually 
able to contribute £98,925 in to them.

Earmarked:-

 Electoral Services £93,012 net use: this is the drawdown to help cover the 
costs of the Borough election held in May.  It is the mechanism that spreads 
the cost of the Borough’s elections over the term of a Council.

 Corporate Finance £174,968 contribution: this is the payment into reserves of 
Government grants in respect of  costs associated with exiting the European 
Union (£29,968); and Toddbrook Dam recovery funding (£145,000); both to be 
carried forward for use in 2020/21

 Property Services £51,240 use: this represents the use of funds set aside to 
support remedial works on a number of the Council’s leisure sites. 

 Communities & Culture £1,000 use; this represents use of funds from  
Derbyshire County Council locality grant 

 Planning £13,975 contribution; £15,000 in New Burdens funding was received 
in respect of servicing the demand for custom housebuilding. This is to be 
placed into an earmarked reserve for use in future years. £1,025 of S106 funds 
were drawn down during the year to fund activity.

 Regeneration £26,924 contribution: this represents the balance on the Future 
High Streets funding received, but not spent during the year. This is to be 
placed in an earmarked reserve for use in future years.

 Waste Collection £1,999 use: this represents the drawdown of the balance on 
the Doorstepping reserve which was used to offset service costs during the 
year.

 Streetscene £12,000 use: This is the application of the Street Scene reserve to 
fund in-year activities

 Housing Strategy £10,268 contribution: this is the payment into reserve of 
Flexible Homeless Support grant received, but not spent during the year.

 Leisure Services £32,280 contribution: this represents the payment into 
reserves the monies refunded by Active Derbyshire in year (£28,720); and the 
unspent balance on Leisure Development funding received in the year. These 
amounts to be used to fund activities in future years.

Page 38



7

 Horticulture £840 use; Works on Parks and Open Spaces are part funded each 
year by drawing down on Section 106 monies previously received from 
Developers as part of their planning obligations.  

General Fund Revenue Reserves:-
     

2.8. The provisional outturn for the year on the General Fund Revenue Account was a 
£295,441 surplus.

2.9. The surplus generated is calculated inclusive of the £1,540 contribution to general 
reserves budgeted for 2019/20.  Therefore, the Authority’s contingency reserves 
have increased overall by £296,981.

2.10. The Authority’s calculated minimum for its contingency reserve is £1,332,000 for 
2020/21.  A review of the Authority’s reserves has been performed to identify 
areas where earmarking for future projects was considered prudent while 
maintaining a satisfactory level for contingency.  As a result the following moves 
into earmarked reserves are proposed;

 £60,000 from the Contingency reserve has been added to an earmarked 
reserve set aside to fund capital expenditure and reduce the overall cost of 
borrowing. A further £40,000 has been moved to this reserve from the 
Insurance Reserve.

 £200,000 from the Contingency Reserve has been used to create a new 
reserve to fund future costs of the Covid-19 recovery programme 

 £25,000 moved from the Insurance reserve to create a Future High Streets 
reserve to help fund consultancy support.

 £20,000 moved from the Insurance reserve to create a new Future Leisure 
Provision reserve to fund options appraisal works.

 £25,000 moved from the Insurance reserve to create a reserve to support with 
the delivery of Climate Change related projects.

2.11. In addition a balance of £800,000 has been moved from the Business Grant 
Incentive reserve to Contingency in line with the 2019/20 Medium Term Financial 
Plan.  

2.12. The effect of these changes results in a balance on general fund reserves as at 
31st March 2020 of £2.841million – which is £1.5million above minimum 
contingency.  The current Medium Term Financial Plan expects to contribute a net 
£17,910 to general contingency reserves over the next four years 2020/21 – 
2023/24.  This is however dependent on the realisation of the Efficiency Plan and 
the impact of Covid-19.

Page 39



8

Carry Forward Request:-

2.13. The following requests for carry forward of underspend have been received:
 Corporate Finance (£6,000): carry forward of unused budget in the General 

Fund Account, relating to completion of risk management work around the 
safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source.  This work, which was 
signed off by the Risk Management Group, was due to be carried out in 201 
funded by a corporate risk management budget. The work will now be 
completed in 2020.

 Assets (£18,000): carry forward of balance on budget provided in 2019/20 
MTFP in respect of works to Whaley Bridge War Memorial to be completed in 
2020/21.

It is recommended that these requests be approved.

3.      Alliance Environmental Services

3.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision to 
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High 
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders: 
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa, 
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. This section of the 
report considers the financial performance of the company and contribution to the 
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

3.2. Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver 
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. This followed the end of the 
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services.  Phase 2 began on 1st 
July 2018 to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
and fleet management services to the Alliance as a whole.

Alliance Environmental Service Ltd Financial performance

3.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to both Councils included an 
anticipated operating profit of £125,271. The draft outturn provided at 31st March 
2020 shows that a profit of £31,537 was achieved during the year; showing a 
shortfall of £93,734 against the budget. The outturn includes both the crystallised 
risk items payable by the Councils (£509,752); the reimbursement of the 
financing element of Vehicles following procurement of Council owned vehicles 
(£53,077); and additional costs incurrent as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak 
(£31,594).

Page 40



9

2019-20 Budget Draft outturn Variance

£ £ £
Turnover (7,676,264) (8,019,644) (343,380)
Cost of sales 6,873,072 7,098,047 224,975
Gross profit (803,192) (921,597) (118,405)

Administrative & Other 
Expenses 677,921 890,060 212,139

(Profit)/ Loss (125,271) (31,537) 93,734

Impact on the Council’s budgets

3.4. This table shows in more detail the outturn on the AES contract included in the 
General Fund Revenue Account and HRA:

2019-20 General 
Fund HRA Total

£ £ £
AES Contract budget 2,828,140 106,510 2,934,650
Former vehicle contract hire budget 22,130 - 22,130
Available budget 2,850,270 106,510 2,956,780

Management fee (incl. vehicle premium) 2,880,409 108,768 2,989,177
In-year risk items 140,638 19,638 160,276
Refund of Vehicle Financing (53,077) - (53,077)
HSE notice of change 23,712 - 23,712
Covid-19 costs 12,626 - 12,626
Total management fee payable 3,004,308 128,406 3,132,714
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit (1,114) (42) (1,156)
Net total 3,003,194 128,364 3,131,558
Net Variance to budget 152,924 21,854 174,778
Other waste savings (108,944) - (108,944)
Total variance to budget 43,980 21,854 65,834

3.5. In addition to the service budgets for the management fee (contract budget), it 
has been recognised that savings on former contract hire vehicle budgets have 
been achieved as a direct result of the change in vehicle provision upon 
cessation of the SFS contract (the Council’s former provider of contract hire 
vehicles). Therefore, savings of £22,130 have been utilised to support the 
forecast waste vehicle and other fleet ‘risk items’.

Page 41



10

3.6. The AES Business Plan also includes forecast expenditure recognised initially as 
‘risk items’ which may or may not crystallise into actual costs/ payments or may 
be absorbed into the existing management fee paid on account.  The draft 
outturn shows that £160,276 (£140,638 general fund, £19,638 HRA) of these risk 
items have crystallised. £69,763 of these risk items relates to fleet costs including 
grounds maintenance equipment which falls under the ‘Fleet’ group. The 
remaining £90,514 relates to contract pressures due to the increasing costs of 
waste disposal and reducing income on recyclate. The company continues to 
work towards to negotiation on prices in the future.

3.7. Following the procurement of new waste vehicles, a refund of £53,077 against 
the management fee has been received relating to the cessation of lease 
financing costs of hire vehicles.

3.8. A Health & Safety Executive (HSE) enforcement notice has required a change in 
the operational way in which AES collect bulky items. This was not anticipated at 
the time of budget setting, therefore has resulted in additional costs. The draft 
outturn includes costs of £23,712, made up of £6,569 for vehicle hire costs and 
£17,143 for agency costs. The company is establishing new ways of working in 
order to eradicate these additional costs from 2020/21 onwards.

3.9. Additional costs of £12,626 were incurred by the company as a result of the 
Covid-19 outbreak. These are included in the draft outturn and include provision 
of cleaning products, PPE and additional agency costs.

3.10. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to 
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
original budgeted resources from each department. After applying adjustments 
relating to late changes to the 2018/19 AES accounts following the audit, the 
Council’s share of the draft outturn for 2019/20 is £1,156 (£1,114 general fund, 
£42 HRA) and is offset against the management fee costs.

3.11. The remaining overspend resulting from crystallised risk items is further offset by 
savings anticipated in the wider waste service of £108,944 not related to AES, 
which relate largely to improved trade waste income.

Efficiencies

3.12. The AES related efficiency targets are being reprofiled as part of the Council’s 
medium term financial planning process owing to the later than anticipated start of 
Phase 3 of the company. The revised efficiency programme will be reported when 
it has been concluded.

Page 42



11

Pensions 

3.13. AES is continuing the process of confirming admitted body status in the 
Derbyshire Pension Fund (DPF). The employees transferred to AES have been 
‘pooled’ with the remaining Council employees in the High Peak portion of the 
DPF.  This effectively removes pension risk from the company, whilst at the same 
time offering greater budget certainty and putting the Council in the same risk 
position that it would have been if services were delivered in-house. With the 
completion of the final phase of staff transfers the Admission Agreement can be 
finalised.

4.       Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

4.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019) included 
a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
targeting savings of £2.1 million.

4.3. The Strategy has five main areas of focus:

 Major Procurements – including waste collection and leisure
 Asset Management Plan
 Growth
 Income Generation
 Rationalisation

4.4. The 2019/20 budget provided for the achievement of £657,000 of new savings in 
year (being £430,000 from the original strategy plus £227,000 of reprofiled 
savings from 2021/22). In addition to this a further £132,000 of savings were 
brought forward as a result of anticipated shortfalls in 2018/19 (assumed as at the 
point the Budget was being proposed) – bringing the target to £789,000.  
However, £75,000 of these savings was actually achieved by the end of 2018/19, 
making the savings requirement for 2019/20 a total of £714,000. The major focus 
of the savings programme in 2019/20 being on growth, income generation and 
procurement.

4.5. At the end of Quarter Four, £867,000 has been taken against the overall efficiency 
programme, which includes sizeable savings arising out of the retendering of the 
Council’s contract for insurance services; the AES joint arrangement; the changed 
Pavilion Gardens arrangements; and the procurement of a new leisure 
management contract. The saving from the last of these has been realised 12 
months earlier than anticipated in the original Efficiency Programme (where it was 
expected to be realised in 2020/21). A further £144,000 of growth related savings 
were also delivered at budget-setting time, arising out of New Homes Bonus and 
Business Rates.  

Page 43



12

4.6. This represents a £206,000 savings surplus against the target originally set for the 
year. However, the current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 
pandemic, places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 
the year; particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. A review of 
the Efficiency Programme will be incorporated into the planned revision of the 
2020/21 Medium Term Financial Plan. This may well require the reversal of some 
savings already taken, at least in the short term, and require alternative savings to 
be identified to make up any shortfall   

4.7. 2019/20 represented the end of year 3 of the current Efficiency Programme with 
£505,000 still to be achieved in the final year. Some of this amount has been 
already identified through the commissioning arrangements with Alliance 
Environmental Services (AES). However, it is important that the focus over the 
next year is shifted to some of the income-related savings, included in the early 
years of the Efficiency Programme, which have not been fully realised. 

4.8. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency 
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency 
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000. 
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains 
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme.

5.       Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the 
operation of the Council’s housing stock. 

5.2. The 2019/20 Housing Revenue Account original budget was originally set to 
produce a surplus of £261,660. Following various updates, approved by the Chief 
Finance Officer and then the Executive in August 2019, it was revised and set at a 
deficit position of £59,510. 

5.3. Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account for 2019/20 is 
£13,076,646 with provisional outturn income of £15,131,586. This represents a 
surplus for the year of £2,054,940 (i.e. £2,114,450 below budget).

Page 44



13

Housing Revenue Account

2019-20 
Revised 
Budget

2019-20 
Provisional 

Outturn
Variance

£ £ £
INCOME   
Dwellings Rents (14,325,340) (14,379,127) (53,787)
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc (622,090) (752,459) (130,369)
Sub-total income (14,947,430) (15,131,586) (184,156)
 EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 4,390,990 4,441,874 50,884
Supervision & Management 2,628,750 2,359,530 (269,220)
Rents, rates, taxes Etc 113,030 120,742 7,712
Other Operating Expenditure 736,450 785,932 49,482
Depreciation & Impairment 2,099,030 2,170,777 71,747
Interest & Debt Management 2,783,310 2,808,424 25,114
Contribution to Capital 2,255,380 389,367 (1,866,013)
Sub-total expenditure 15,006,940 13,076,646 (1,930,294)
 Surplus(-)/Deficit 59,510 (2,054,940) (2,114,450)

5.4. The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local   
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The Council comfortably maintained a credit balance 
on the Housing Revenue Account in 2019/20. The surplus balance will be 
transferred to reserves within the Housing Revenue Account.

5.5. There is one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:
 Repairs and Maintenance (£50,884) – this overspend is the net result of 

numerous budget variances across a wide range of areas.  Most significantly 
are the increased costs associated with materials and component repairs 
including doors and windows.  

5.6. There are three significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.

 Income (£184,156) – improvements to void turnarounds and increased 
income from service charges have been responsible for this positive variance.

 Supervision and Management  (£269,220) – there are numerous 
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this 
underspend however, a large proportion of this variance relates to savings in 
salary and corporate costs.

 Contribution to Capital (£1,866,013) – The HRA capital programme was 
revised during the MTFP process in February 2020, lowering the expected 
contribution by £1,713,600 to just £541,780 and represents the largest 
proportion of this variance.  The remainder relates to delays in 
commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is 
reflective of the changes to the Capital Programme detailed in Section 8.

Page 45



14

6. General Fund Capital Programme

6.1. The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 
2020was set at  £5,328,520

6.2. The 2019/20 provisional outturn at 31st March 2020 is summarised in the table   
below, with further detail provided at Annex A

Service
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Outturn 
2019/20 Variance 

 £ £ £

Housing 27,000             -   (27,000)
Housing Standards 495,660 285,080 (210,580)
Property Services 1,656,500 1,637,921 (18,579)
ICT 135,000 86,187 (48,813)
Fleet Management 2,467,010 2,225,748 (241,262)
Regeneration 352,140 364,458 12,318
Horticulture 195,210 105,218 (89,992)
Total 5,328,520 4,704,612 (623,908)
    
Planning Obligations 33,000             -   (33,000)
External Contributions 585,460 374,885 (210,575)
Capital Receipts 1,024,080 994,000 (30,080)
Capital Receipts(one for one) 27,000             -   (27,000)
Capital Reserves 500,000 500,000              -   
Earmarked Reserves 14,450             -   (14,450)
Borrowing 3,144,530 2,835,728 (308,802)
Total 5,328,520 4,704,612 (623,908)

6.3. The Council incurred capital expenditure of £4,704,612 during the year against a 
revised budget of £5,328,520 - this represents underspend of £623,908. The 
underspend reflects the net impact of Capital Programme projects which are either 
behind schedule or have progressed quicker than expected with the most 
significant variances being:

 Housing Standards (£210,580 underspend)   – main underspend resulted 
from less spending in the year than forecast against disabled facilities 
grants (DFGs),the actual value of grants processed was £211,830 below 
estimated at Quarter 3, although  there was £274,748 of grant works carried 
out but not completed  by the end of March,.  At this stage the underspend 
will not be carried forward but ring–fenced and the 2020/21 budget 
reviewed to reflect the impact of Covid-19 on the delivery of the grants 
programme

 Fleet Management Vehicle & Plant Acquisitions (£241,262 underspend) - 
The underspend reflects the revised timing of acquisitions of further fleet 
vehicles which will now take place in 2020/21

Page 46



15

 Property (£18,577 underspend) – various under and over spends on Asset 
Management Plan projects, including £46,000 overspend against final 
settlement agreed with the contractor who carried out the Pavilion Gardens 
Octagon refurbishment.

 ICT (£48,813 underspend) – delays to the implementation of Microsoft 
Office365 and Concerto Asset Management System has resulted in a carry 
forward into 2020/21 to cover final stage payments.

 Horticulture (£89,992 under spend) – Refurbishment of  Whitfield Play Area 
was put on hold following the outbreak of COVID- 19 – the project budget of 
£90,000 will be carried forward to 2020/21 to  reflect the revised works plan. 
Proposals are in place to commence on site in early July 2020 with an 
expected works programme of six weeks

6.4. Consequently, capital funding applied to the 2019/20 Capital Programme is lower 
than forecast, reflecting the incidence and timing of capital spend.

6.5. As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to increase / 
decrease the Capital budgets for 2020/21 as shown in the table below:-

Capital Programme 'Carry Forwards' (2019/20 to 2020/21)

Service Variance 
Carry Forward 

to 2019/20 
Over/(Under) 

Spend

Over/ (Under) 
spend  

Completed 
Projects

 £ £ £
Housing (27,000)                   -   (27,000)
Housing Standards (210,580)                   -   (210,580)
Property (18,579) (18,577) (2)
ICT (48,813) (48,156) (657)
Fleet Management (241,262) (241,262)                  -   
Regeneration 12,318 12,318                  -   
Horticulture - Play Facilities (89,992) (90,000) 8
Total (623,908) (385,677) (238,231)

7.      Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 
capital spending.

7.2. The HRA Capital Programme approved by members in February 2020 was set at 
£2,701,810.

7.3. The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme 
provisional outturn at 31st March 2020. Further detail on a scheme by scheme 
basis is contained in Annex B.

Page 47



16

Scheme
2019-20 
Revised 
Budget

2019-20 
Provisional

Outturn
2019-20 
Variance

Carry 
Forward 
2020/21

2019-20
Over/ 

(Under) 
Spend

  £  £  £  £  £ 
Asset Management Works 2,351,910 2,231,282 (120,628) 120,000 (628)
Repairs Team Capital Works 249,900 217,603 (32,297) 0 (32,297)
Commissioning Fees 100,000 100,512 512 0 512
Vehicle Purchasing 0 0 0 0 0
Total 2,701,810 2,549,397 (152,413) 120,000 (32,413)
Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 2,099,030 0 0 0
Capital Receipts Applied 61,000 61,000 0 0 0
HRA Contribution 541,780 389,367 (152,413) 120,000 (32,413)

2,701,810 2,549,397 (152,413) 120,000 (32,413)

7.4. The Council incurred capital expenditure of £2,549,397 during the year against a 
revised budget of £2,701,810; this represents an under spend of £152,413.  Of 
this underspend, a request to carry forward £120,000 is made to continue the 
works affected by Covid 19 restrictions during March 2020 and include the 
following projects:
 Disabled Adaptations – wet room conversions – (£50,000). 
 Component Replacements – kitchens; bathrooms; electrical works (£60,000)
 Lift Replacement Programme - survey works – (£10,000)

The remaining variances are small and reflect the net impact of the Capital 
Programme projects which are either behind schedule or have progressed quicker 
than expected.

7.5. The HRA Capital programme outturn is lower than anticipated and this is reflected 
in the reduced funding direct from the HRA and associated capital reserves. 

8.      Treasury Management

8.1. This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 
level Treasury Management summary.  The Audit and Regulatory Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management.

Investments

8.2. Cash Investments held on the 31st March 2020 totalled £20.5million. The average 
level of funds available for investment during the year totalled £21.4million and 
£174,397 interest was earned.

Page 48



17

8.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £225,260 in investment income in 2019/20. 
The budget was set with the potential for two Bank of England base rate rises to 
1.00% then 1.25% during 2019/20. These did not take place and the base rate 
remained at 0.75% for majority of the year with cuts to 0.25% and 0.10% during 
March 2020, therefore there was a shortfall on interest income of £36,513.

Borrowing

8.4. Outstanding borrowing at 31st March 2020 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s 
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,794,630 and £1,859,110 respectively 
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2019/20. This was based on 
existing external debt and new external debt to fund the borrowing requirements 
arising from the 2018/19 and 2019/20 general fund capital programmes.

8.5. None of this ‘new’ borrowing activity occurred during the year, therefore the 
budget is forecast to be £148,592 underspent overall: £123,480 to the general 
fund; and £25,112 to the HRA.

9.       Revenue Collection

9.1. The collection rate outturn for Quarter 4 2018/19 was as follows:

 Council Tax – 98.41% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2020, 
compared to 98.43% for the same period last year.

 Business Rates – 98.39% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 
2020, compared with 99.09% for the same period last year.  

 Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of 
Quarter 4 was £162,981 which compares with £184,465 at 31st March 2019.  

Page 49



18

Annex A    

                   General Fund Capital Programme Update 31st March 2020

Capital Schemes
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Out- Turn 
2019/20 Variance C/fwd to 

2020/21

Over/     
(Underspend)   

Completed 
Projects

 £ £ £ £ £
Housing & Housing 
Standards      
Affordable Housing Project 27,000 - (27,000)           -        (27,000)
Disabled Facilities Grants 489,110 277,280 (211,830)                -   (211,830)
Landlord Accreditation Grants 6,550 7,800 1,250                -   1,250
 522,660 285,080 (237,580)                -   (237,580)
Property Services      
Asset Management Programme 1,656,500 1,637,921 (18,579) (18,577) (2)
 1,656,500 1,637,921 (18,579) (18,577) (2)
ICT 135,000 86,187 (48,813) (48,156) (657)
 135,000 86,187 (48,813) (48,156) (657)
Fleet Management/CCTV      
Vehicle Acquisition 2,467,010 2,225,748 (241,262) (241,262)                  -   
 2,467,010 2,225,748  (241,262) (241,262)                  -   
Regeneration      
Buxton Crescent & Spa 352,140 364,458 12,318 12,318                  -   
 352,140 364,458 12,318 12,318                  -   
Horticulture      
Play Facilities 195,210 105,218 (89,992) (90,000) 8
 195,210 105,218 (89,992) (90,000) 8
      
Total General Fund 5,328,520 4,704,612 (623,908) (385,677) (238,231)

Page 50



19

Annex B

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 31st March 2020

Scheme

Revised
Budget 
2019/20

19/20 
Provisional 

Outturn
19/20

Variance
C/Fwd to 
2020/21

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:  £  £  £  £  £ 
Roofing & External Works 75,000 114,220 39,220 - 39,220

Kitchens 554,170 489,848 (64,322) 20,000 (44,322)

Bathrooms 266,000 215,057 (50,943) 20,000 (30,943)

Central Heating 276,500 257,715 (18,785) - (18,785)

Electrical Works 424,000 387,337 (36,663) 20,000 (16,663)

Aids & Adaptations 391,740 440,392 48,652 50,000 98,652

Structural Works 164,500 163,082 (1,418) - (1,418)

Lift Replacements 10,000 - (10,000) 10,000 -

Boiler Replacement 94,000 93,548 (452) - (452)

Works to Communal Areas 34,000 - (34,000) - (34,000)

Window and Door Replacements 62,000 70,083 8,083 - 8083

 2,351,910 2,231,282 (120,628) 120,000 (628)
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS    
Void Rewires 41,000 45,163 4,163 - 4,163
Void Kitchens  115,500 94,183 (21,317) - (21,317)
Void Bathrooms  93,400 78,257 (15,143) - (15,143)
 249,900 217,603 (32,297) 0 (32,297)
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES    
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning 
Costs 100,000 100,512 512 - 512

 100,000 100,512 512 0 512
VEHICLE PURCHASING    
Vehicle Purchases - -
 0 0 0 0 0
 
TOTAL SPEND 2,701,810 2,549,397 (152,413) 120,000 (32,413)

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

2019/20

Fourth Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 53



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was 
approved by Councillors in February 2017. 

1.2 The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the 
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  The key actions in in 
the strategy included:-

 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts.

 Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of excellence 
to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils

 Revising Procurement Procedure Rules to support transparency, timeliness 
of contract award and greater control – these have now been updated

 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate

 Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
 Implementation of e-tendering
 Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.4 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 
presentation during 2020. 

2. Fourth Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function for the fourth quarter January 
2020 to March 2020 is summarised below:

Fourth Quarter  
High Value 

(> £181,000)

Low Value

 (< £181,000)
Total

HPBC Only 0 17 17
JOINT (HP/SM) 0 4* 4
TOTAL 21

*Joint exercises detailed are reviews on renewals for existing contracts which are 
not required to be procured in 2019/20.

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 21 procurement exercises completed during 
Quarter four. It should be noted that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a number of 
larger contract award decisions that were scheduled, were not made during the 
last quarter – these contracts were deferred to 2020/21 and will be reported in the 
first quarter report for 2020/21.

2.3 No direct cashable savings have been made as a result of specific procurement 
activity during Quarter 4. However, the outcome from planned procurement 
activity has given rise to savings in the Councils corporate inflation budget, which 
has contributed to the requirements of the efficiency programme.

Page 54



3. 2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan 

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting 
in 2020/21.

2019/20

Activity

High Value 

(> £181,000k)

 Low Value

 (< £181,000k)
Total

HPBC 9 34 43
JOINT (HP/SM) 4 20 24
TOTAL 67

In addition to the above, there are 142 listed entries brought forward from 
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2020/21 includes:-

 IT Operational Support Contract
 Fairfield Gateway Project Support 
 Facilities Management Contract
 Fleet replacements - AES
 Glossop Halls – Market Hall / Municipal Buildings works Contracts
 HRA Capital Programmes (works contracts)
 Compliance and Remedial works contract : Electrical Testing HRA
 Car Parks – P&D machine upgrades 

4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the fourth quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 
31st March 2020

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 72% 67%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 87% 83%

% Of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 97%

Page 55



4.3 Performance Indicators – targets not achieved

% of Alliance Procurement Activity on Forward Plan

Throughout 2019/20 as part of the Business support strategy we worked closely 
with services to establish planned and recurring procurement data to inform the 
Council’s Procurement Forward Plan.  This strategy has proved successful in 
improving compliance and maintaining a clear programme of reviews and 
communications across both Authorities. 

However there will always be reactive procurement needs that cannot be 
established in advance of the event and this has impacted overall to the 
performance target being successfully achieved for 2019/20.  Continuation of the 
current service support approach will be delivered during 2020/21 but we will look 
to schedule increased review sessions with higher demand service areas to work 
to improve the performance even further.

Annual contract spend as % of gross expenditure budget

During the final quarter of 2019/20 Procurement continued to deliver and support 
exercises against the forward plan of activity to achieve higher proportion of 
contracted supplies, services and work arrangements with economic operators.  
The contracts awarded in Q4 due to commence in 2020/21 will be captured as on 
contract spend when they are operational.

Page 56



ANNEX A
Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC

Contract name Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award 
Detail 

Term / 
Duration
(years)

 Total 
Contract 

Value        
(inc exts) 

Whitfield 
Recreation 
Ground – Play 
Area 
Improvement 
Project

Improvements to Play 
facilities at Whitfield 
Recreation Ground 
Glossop

One Off Service 
Commissioning

Framework – 
Further 
Competition

HAGS 
SMP

16 wks
Feb 
start 
date 

delayed

90,000

Cenotaph 
Repairs – 
Whaley Bridge

Specialist remedial repairs 
to Cenotaph at Whaley 
Bridge  Memorial Park 

One Off Service 
Commissioning

Single Source The Fringe 
Work Shop 

Mar - 
Oct

36,000

HRA Passenger 
Lifts 
Consultancy 
Services

Consultancy services to 
complete condition and 
recommendation reports 
on all passenger lifts in 
Sheltered Schemes over a 
phased programme

One Off Assets Framework – 
Direct Award

Mand PLS 1+1 23,880

Buxton Crescent 
Project Water 
source Advisory 
Services  – 
Hydrogeology 
Consultancy

Professional 
Hydrogeologist 
Consultancy Services, 
continuation of project 
support for the Crescent 
Thermal Spa development.

Extension to facilitate 
completion of project for 
2020

Recurring Regeneration
/ Legal

CCN – 
variation on 
original

Wood PLC 1 22,716

Consultancy – 
‘The Springs’ 
Options 
Appraisal

Financial advice on options 
open to the Council as part 
of FHSF project

One Off Regeneration Single Source Lambert 
Smith 
Hampton

8 wks 19,500

External 
Painting to 
Buxton Town 
Hall

Buxton Town Hall  - 
Painting 

One Off Assets Open Advert – 
RFQ

Mitie 
Property 
Services

12 wks 18,182

High Peak Food 
recycling Trial – 
Bio degradable 
Bags

Supply Bio Degradable 
waste bags for High Peak 
Food recycling trial 

Recurring Service 
Commissioning

Framework – 
Direct call off

The 
Composta
ble Bag 
Co. 

Supply 13,622

Glossop Town 
Hall Clock – 
Repair

Specialist maintenance 
Services for repair of 
Glossop Town Hall Clock 

One Off Assets Single Source Smith of 
Derby Ltd

n/a 13,360

Page 57



Play equipment 
Whaley Bridge 
Memorial Park

Purchase and installation 
of new slide at Whaley 
Bridge Memorial Park

One Off Service 
Commissioning

Framework – 
Call Off

Wicksteed 
Leisure

Supply 7,421

Play Bark 
Supply 
Playground 
Sites High Peak

Supply of bark for two play 
areas in High Peak

One Off Operational 
Services - 
Grounds

Single Source Scot Bark Supply 5,750

Replacement of 
Lead water feed 
at HRA Property

Water main replacement / 
installation at Housing 
Property

One Off Assets CNN – under 
existing 
contract

Drainage 
Consultant
s 

n/a 5,000

Purchase of 
Washing 
machine and 
dryer Hartington 
Gardens

New commercial washing 
machine and dryer at 
Hartington Gardens 
Sheltered Scheme Buxton

One Off Customer 
Services -
Housing 

RFQ Goodman 
Sparks

Supply 4,508

Mobile Phone 
SIM Cards - 
Carelink

Replacement SIMs for 
Carelink ER  mobile 
technology units – 
geographical coverage 
(Vodafone)

One Off Transformation Framework Vodafone 1+1 3,000

Planning 
Appeal

Expert Conservation 
Advice planning appeal 
case

One Off Development 
Control 

Single Source Nicholas 
Doggett

4 wks 2,750

Flail Mowing 
Services High 
Peak

Flail Grass cutting on high 
ways in High peak 

Recurring Operational 
Services – 
Grounds

n/a Novation to AES

Page 58



Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT

Contract name Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award 
Detail 

Term / 
Duration
(years)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 

Alliance 
Consultancy 
Framework – 
H&S CDM 
Professional 
Services

Alliance own established 
framework for H&S and 
CDM Professional services 
for Capital Programme 
construction contracts

Recurring Assets Not required 
for level of 
expected 
services 
needed for 
future yrs

Deleted from Procurement forward 
Plan 

Individual requirements will be 
sourced directly from Open RFQ or 

National Frameworks

Quantity 
Surveying 
Services for 
HPBC & SMDC

As above for QS 
Professional Services

Recurring Assets Not required 
for level of 
expected 
services 
needed for 
future yrs

Deleted from Procurement forward 
Plan

Individual requirements will be 
sourced directly from Open RFQ or 

National Frameworks

Staff Learning 
and 
Development 
Programme For 
Alliance 
Employees

Overall training provider 
arrangement with 
University of Derby

Recurring OD& 
Transformation

Not required 
for whole 
contract 
scope

Deleted from Procurement forward 
Plan 

Individual requirements will be 
sourced directly from RFQ process 
or available training providers for 

professional qualifications on case 
by case basis

Supply 
Computer 
Consumables 
for Printing units

Supply of printer toners for 
individual machines

Recurring Customer 
Services

Not required – 
low value 
Reduced 
requirements 

Deleted from Procurement forward 
Plan 

Print rationalisation project reduced 
requirements for purchase of printing 

sundries

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2019/ 2020 (Q4 Outturn)

P
age 61



64%

31%

5%

Target Met Off Track N/a
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%                          

49%

33%
18%

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%          

High Peak Q4 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April 2019 to March 2020 in relation to 
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the 
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and 
compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 121 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak (10 less than last year). The chart below 
shows the results for 2019/20, which are 3% higher than last year with 64% of all targets met and the trend has also increased by 4%. The 
actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the previous Corporate 
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects. 

Customer Feedback Overview 

The number of complaints received during 2019/20 has fallen by 46% compared to last year, with just 120 complaints. Both repeat complaints 
and responding to complaints met their corporate targets. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any 
repeat issues.     

 

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

P
age 62



Target Met Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 1: March Results 2019/20

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 1: March Trends 
2019/20

   Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work 

Year end performance across Aim One metrics is relatively strong; with two-thirds of all targets met and a significant improvement on last 
year’s results. Of the 4 off track measures at High Peak, only one was a direct result of lockdown (walking for health programme closed at the 
beginning of March). Although the use of temporary accommodation has also been negatively affected by the pandemic, performance was 
already significantly off track prior to the additional 5 cases but the use of this accommodation assists in homelessness prevention.       

Celebrating Success: 

At the end of 2019-2020 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 housing register wait times
 sports participation programmes
 homelessness prevention
 processing benefit new claims
 external sports funding

P
age 63



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Continuing Priority Actions Status Commentary – March
Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations

The CCTV is installed and working. 

Develop and implement an ongoing 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused on improving the health and 
well- being of residents  

The draft specification for the consultancy work has now been shared with key partners. A 
meeting is to be arranged to ensure the draft specification meets our wider aspirations and 
delivers the level of information required to enable the project to progress. 

Implement the accelerated housing 
delivery programme

Proactive delivery of Council owned sites- Housing portfolio:
Glossop package: Glossop and Gamesley OPE funding confirmed. The project delivery team 
and project board has been established. A report outlining Glossop & Gamesley OPE, Depot 
OPE (Glossop elements) and Glossop Gateway project taken to E & G committee in 
November.  Awaiting clarification on grant offer and element of repayment before agreeing 
date of next meeting.  
Buxton package: HIF grant acceptance to be signed by the end of October- clawback 
mechanism agreed with developers- awaiting approval from HE. Revised Golf Club lease 
agreed.  Soft marketing testing exercise completed.
Granby Road- The disposal of Granby Road A has been approved; planning approval granted.

NEW: Review the Sport and Physical 
Activity Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives

This work will be conducted during 2020-21. Update reports on progress to date have been 
drafted for the Community Select Committee at HPBC.

Continuing Influencing actions
Maintaining the provision of accessible 
health and social care 

High Peak:
In Q3 the committee considered the following reports:  Leisure Centre Options; Air Quality Management 
Area Action Plan for Tintwistle; Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on part of the A57, 
Dinting Vale, Glossop. Nothing to report in Q4 in terms of health.

P
age 64



New Priority / Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project 
delivery mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project 
launches. 
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for private renters (HP) homeowners and private tenants (SM)

 Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain strong partnerships with community groups
 Review the Community Safety Strategy to ensure that the Council is supportive in fighting crime and anti-social behaviour (HP). Review the 

Council's community safety arrangements in order to maintain strong partnerships with community groups (SM)

 Implement the Homelessness Strategy effectively to ensure that voluntary groups and social enterprises that work to tackle the issue are 
supported effectively

 Review the delivery of services to older persons to ensure that they are effective
 Dealing with ASB  

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One:

 Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an 
aging population)

 The ability to effectively engage with our communities
 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty)
 Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives

P
age 65



Target Met Off Track N/A
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 2: March Results 2019/20

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

HP Aim 2: March Trends 
2019/20

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

Aim two shows a decrease in the % of metrics meeting their target compared to last year. Of the 13 off track measures at High Peak, only three 
relate to the council’s landlord function with the repairs service unable to carry out responsive repairs in March due to lockdown restrictions.    

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of 2019-2020 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 properties with nil void loss
 invoice processing
 low workplace accidents
 nndr and ctax collection rates
 twitter and Facebook followers
 complaint handling and repeat issues
 internal audit recommendations implemented
 IT systems and network availability 

P
age 66



 2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – March
Provide advice and support for 
residents affected by the rollout of 
Universal Credit  

Phase 2: Universal credit roll out (rents).
A project stream is being established to look at local Council tax reduction processes and the 
options for this going forward. A forecasting tool to analyse and cost out a banded scheme 
has been purchased and modelling will take place as soon as this has been implemented
Rents process meeting: pencilled in for March 2020 to be re-arranged. 

Continue to embed good 
information management practices 
through the ASSURED framework

The GDPR action plan, including audit actions is on track. Progress is monitored through the 
Information Governance Group. 
The online GDPR training package has been rolled out across the organisation, further in- 
depth training will be arranged for relevant staff.
Information Asset Registers have been reviewed and a programme of challenge sessions 
commenced in October where managers are invited to attend Information Governance 
Group to review their registers. Work is ongoing with contractors and suppliers to ensure 
adequate GDPR clauses are in place.

Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income

New fees and charges have been developed for 2020-21 following AES undertaking a 
wholescale review of their costs.
Fees and charges- Next review for 2020/21 budget setting/MTFP. Fee set. Car park charges: 
focus required, a review will be taken during the year and this will be added to the 
programme. Car park investments work to be included.
Advertising/Sponsorship - Actions and outcomes are now in place to enable the project to 
progress. The Advertising and Sponsorship Policy has been agreed and will be produced, 
Community Partners Ltd report to be presented to the project group and a meeting 
arranged.
Empty Homes-The empty property strategy update report has been released

NEW: Implement the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Programme (This will focus on a 
number of projects including 
procurement, income generation, 
trading, advertising and 
sponsorship, etc.)

The current Efficiency & Rationalisation programme has been reviewed and re-profiled as 
part of the Budget Setting Process.  This may now need to be reviewed in light of COVID-19 
and the financial impact that will have on the Alliance.

NEW: Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally

An Information Digest report is to be released in June 2020 which invites comment from 
Members which will then feed into the formal Procurement Strategy to be released later in 
the year.

P
age 67



Priority Actions Status Commentary – March
Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place

Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC for the financial 
year 20-21.  The Asset Management Plan is pending the implementation of the new Asset 
Management system which is ongoing. 

NEW: Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all

The channel shift project will evolve into the Access to Services Strategy going forward. This 
will have a close link to the ICT strategy/digital transformation programme. Following on 
from the adoption of both corporate plans, we will now work to develop a new Access to 
Services Strategy and ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services will pick 
up pace. The next step is the review and realignment of all relevant projects which relate to 
digitisation of services, with the objectives to streamline internal processes, improve 
efficiencies and enhance our provision of self-serve options, and review new technology.

NEW: Implement the agreed 
Housing Revenue Account Business 
Plan

The HRA Business Plan has been updated and presented as part of the Budget/MTFP report.   
The Business plan action plan is completed.  
The financially sustainable position over the 30 years is based on updated financial 
information – including results of the 100% stock condition surveys. The financial position is 
being updated as part of the MTFP process. However, risks/challenges remain, so there is an 
action plan appended to the HRA Business Plan.  A meeting took place, the action plan was 
reviewed and actions agreed.
Right to Buy and Repairs functions are being reviewed; the repairs plan is to be taken to the 
members group. Tenant participation work is to be taken forward as part of the tenant 
advisory service. Estate master plans are to be reviewed.

New Priority Actions - The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.
 Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure effective workforce development and use of apprenticeships 
 Develop a new ICT strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services
 Refresh the council’s Communication Strategy in order to ensure there is a more effective dialogue and engagement with residents
 Conduct a review of democratic processes and scrutiny arrangements to make the Council as open and transparent as possible.
 Review the council’s Diversity Policies including working with faith and cultural groups to celebrate the traditions and diversity of our 

community

P
age 68



Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two:

 Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
 Staff resources and retention
 Effective contract management
 Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations)
 Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets 
 Investment into council assets and long term planning
 Financial and Legislative impacts from world events e.g. Brexit 
 Cyber risk and IT Security

P
age 69



Target Met Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
HP Aim 3: March Results 2019/20 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
HP Aim 3: March Trends 2019/20

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration 

The Council’s performance profile under Aim Three is unchanged from 2018/19, with relatively strong performance but a decreased trend. The 
impact of the pandemic on High Peak’s performance can be seen in the Pavilion Gardens footfall figures; the site closed to the public on March 
20th. Whilst planning processing targets have been met; agent satisfaction and planning enforcement resolution times are below target.            

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of 2019-2020 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 empty town centre shops
 priority 1 enforcement cases
 major, minor and other planning applications processed on time
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal

P
age 70



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Continuing / New Priority Actions Status Commentary – March
Support the development of Glossop Halls Market Hall Roof: The contractor is nearly off site, we are waiting to hear from 

Highways for the road closure required, which has been delayed because of the 
weather. The clock will be coming back to the site on 8th Feb. There will be a final 
clear up of scaffolding in February. Head of Assets to attend the Phase 2 meeting to 
clarify the spec/end product. There will be a report from Exec on the next cycle. 
Use of the Victoria Hall continues.

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan.

This will form part of the Developer Contributions SPD which is intended to 
incorporate guidance on all forms of contributions to be sought via S106. The SPD 
will be commissioned once the ongoing consideration of the viability and merits of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy has concluded. A Viability Study for CIL is due for 
completion in Summer 2020 (a further draft report is due in June). The Council is 
also reviewing the wider implications of adopting a levy such as back-office staffing 
and administration requirements. The Development Services and Service 
Commissioning teams will need to collaborate on the open space aspects of the SPD 
which is intended to be commissioned to provide sufficient resource to take it 
forward.

Implement the accelerated business growth 
and employment programme

Wrens Nest: The optimum scheme on the Wrens nest site has been costed; a 
proposal is being presented to the Borough Council. 
Chapel Masterplan: A meeting was held at the beginning of October with Derbyshire 
Police to consider proposals for delivery of a Police hub (serving the north of the 
Borough) within the masterplan area. Police have appointed a consultant to move 
the project forward. Access and land ownership issues being considered.
Buxton Station:  Planning applications for the health hub and McCarthy & Stone 
development have been approved. Project managers have been appointed via the 
OPE process. DCHS is awaiting the outcome of the bid to STP programme. The 
outline business case is nearing completion, once the costs are known a report will 
be prepared seeking Council investment. McCarthy & Stone are on site and will 
construct the access road required for the health hub.

NEW: Develop a Cultural Strategy to support 
and celebrate the rich history and culture of 
the Borough

Resources to be discussed and agreement regarding the way forward. 

P
age 71



NEW: Review the Council’s Growth strategy to 
ensure that it is focused on the effective 
regeneration of our towns and rural
 communities 

4 out of 4 accelerating business growth/employment projects are on track

NEW: Review the implementation of the Local 
Plan to ensure that the requirements for 
affordable housing and developer 
contributions are being met

Policy review work has begun in line with the revised corporate plans. A revised 
timetable will be issued in Spring.
SHELAA is now complete and being reviewed

Influencing Actions               
CONTINUING: Work with the private sector on 
regeneration schemes including The Crescent 
and Torr Vale Mill   

The Crescent: The regeneration team are continuing to engage with the project via progress 
meetings and Buxton Crescent Communications plan

NEW: Ensure the best use of public assets 
across the borough by working via the One 
Public Estate project

Project delivery team and project board established for Glossop and Gamesley OPE. Report 
outlining Glossop and Gamesley OPE, Depot OPE (Glossop elements) and Glossop Gateway 
project taken to E&G committee in November. Awaiting clarification on grant offer and element 
of repayment before agreeing date of next meeting

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.
 HP- Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links and essential road infrastructure

 HP-Work with regional partners to extend the Greater Manchester rail offer

 HP- Completion of the off- road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington trails

 HP- Bringing additional funding into the Borough

 HP-Enabling high- speed internet across the Borough

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three:

 External funding for growth / regeneration schemes

P
age 72



Target Met Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 4: March Results 2019/20 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 4: March Trends 2019/20

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

High Peak’s performance profile under Aim Four is very strong and has increased by 4% to 87% this year. Fly tipping remains off track and was 
well above the target for the year prior to the closure of the local recycling centres.  

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of 2019-2020 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 street cleanliness standards
 volunteer hours by friends / community groups
 missed bins
 paper consumption
 recycling and residual waste tonnages (estimates)

   

P
age 73



 2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – March
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new 
joint venture company, to deliver 
waste, streets and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of the 
Council in order to achieve improved 
performance and value for money 
outcomes.

COMPLETED
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020.
Grounds & Streets current IT systems & internal processes will remain unchanged; there is 
huge potential for improvements as most are manual & paper-based.  A separate business 
case is required to evaluate the Collective modules Vs investment of internal resource to 
develop digitised solutions using IEG4 software we already have (Open Process & Form 
building software) and will be included in the wider Digital Transformation Programme.  
These products have been enhanced over the last 12 months to include mapping 
interfaces & geolocations, so could potentially be developed in-house (e.g. complete end-
to-end digitised & automated process of fly tipping reports from customers to teams on 
the ground)

NEW: Develop a Parks Development 
Plan to support the widest 
community use of parks and support 
community/friends’ groups

The Leisure & recreation team met with the Executive Members for Parks and 
Environment, Climate Change and Community Safety in order to agree a format for the 
plan and to brainstorm topics for inclusion in this new document.

NEW: Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy

Implementation of Collective for Waste & Recycling: implementation is underway, project 
team consisting of ANSA, AES, Northgate & Council people are meeting regularly to review 
the data ready for migration, and the automation of processes within Collective that will 
bring efficiencies internally at AES. A test extract has been completed and should be in by 
the end of Jan.
We are also working with IEG4 to design the intuitive web forms, which will have the 
capability to display the live data back to residents on the web.  Once we have the test 
data in, we can start testing the online calendar solution which shows colour coded 
collection dates. 
Both of these elements are crucial to this project to ensure the significant savings and 
benefits identified in the business case are realised - details of potential savings shared 
with project team. 

NEW: Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce dog fouling 
and littering 

An Environmental Reporting App was looked at as part of the CGI review.  This is to be 
included in the new Digital Programme going forward, work to be prioritized.

P
age 74



New Priority / Influencing Actions - The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project 
delivery mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project 
launches.
 Develop a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a declared climate emergency
 Develop more cycle routes whilst working with the County Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users
 Encourage local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon footprint

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four:

 Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs)

 Energy supply (inc fuel)
 Our ability to protect Buxton's natural thermal spring water

P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



Areas for Improvement: 2019/2020 Outturn

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Head of Housing and 
Benefits 

Time taken to process 
change of circumstances

7 days 8.99 days We have been faced with a large amount of 
changes to process. This, along with a recent 
increase in applications received, has resulted in 
the target not being met.

Number of households in 
temporary accommodation

15 29 Five of these cases are Covid19 related. The use of 
temporary accommodation supports the high 
performance in relation to preventing full duty 
homeless cases

a) Number of RTB 
transactions (applications) 
& b) % completed within 

statutory timescales (RTB2)

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 

the needs of tenants

Head of Legal and 
Elections

100% a)56 b) 
96.4%

54 out of 56 applications have been processed 
within timescales. The remaining 2 were overdue 
following valuation delays. 

Number of participants on 
the High Peak Walking for 

Health Programme

Aim 1: Provision of high 
quality leisure facilities

Head of Service 
Commissioning

3550 3299 Due to Covid19, the Walking for Health 
programme was suspended from 1 March 2020 
meaning our outturn will be for 11 months 
delivery rather than 12.

P
age 78



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Average time from request 
to repair (DLO)

Head of Direct 
Services

13 days 14.1 days This PI has increased in March, total average days 
for all jobs was 17.18 days, when they are broken 
down in to each priority it gives a different 
prospective of what has been achieved. P1's - 
Target within 24 hours - Av days 0.07 / P2's Target 
7 days - Av days 3.17 days / P3's - Target 21 days - 
Av days 12.03 days / P4's - Target 112 days - Av 
days 41.95 days. From 23rd March we had to 
cancel all appointments other than emergency 
works due to COVID-19, we had to send 12 Repairs 
Operatives home to self isolate, we only have 5 
repairs Operatives carrying out emergency works, 
this has had an impact to the number of jobs that 
we carried out in March. We only attended 990 
jobs, thus effecting performance.

NEW: Average number of 
jobs completed per 
operative per day

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets

Head of Direct 
Services

4.75 4.63 The PI was on track to improve up on last months 
figures, as we had to cancel a week & half's worth 
of jobs due to COVID-19 this has had an impact on 
the outcome of the PI. Had we not had to cancel 
work I believe we would have met the year end 
target.

Average time taken to re-let 
Council homes

Head of  Housing 
and Benefits

25 days 28.6 days The Covid19 restrictions and lockdown prevented 
any allocations after mid-March, however rental 
loss due to voids, back to back allocations and 
performance excluding hard to lets are all on track.

% & Number of council 
owned business units 

occupied

Head of Assets 86% (25/29) 85% 
(22/26)

Three tenanted properties were sold this year. The 
same properties remain void as last year. The 
target should be recalculated to accommodate 
disposal figures.

P
age 79



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

FOI requests: % responded 
to within statutory time 

frame 

Head of Legal and 
Elections

95% 81.86% 
(591/722)

Response times for a number of service areas have 
been affected by the impact of COVID 19. We are 
reviewing this with Managers and will also be 
reminding them of their responsibility to meet the 
guidelines around FOI response times.

No. / % of interactions: a) 
phone b) face to face c) web

Head of  Customer 
Services 

a)  37%
b)  23%
c)  40%

a)  42%
b)  23%
c)  36%

Overall the number of contacts via all channels has 
reduced by 5% .The % by phone will reduce as we 
implement the facility to report housing repairs 
online.

Website Quality: Socitm 
Better Connected 

assessment

Aim 2: Easily available 
services provided right 

first time

Head of OD and 
Transformation

4 stars 3 stars The assessment was undertaken in Aug 2019.

Use of contracts register: 
annual contract spends as a 

% of gross expenditure 
budget 

Head of Finance 2% 
improvement 

to 2018/19

83% (Q3 
2019-20)

During the final quarter of 2019/20 Procurement 
continued to deliver procurement exercises 
against the procurement forward plan to achieve 
higher proportion of contracted supply, service 
and works arrangements.  The contracts awarded 
in quarter four will result in higher % of contracted 
spend for 2020/21 when they are operational.

Number of press releases 
and % taken up in local 

media

Head of OD and 
Transformation

94% 42 issued 
93% take 

up

Target increased from 90% following a high take 
up rate of 98% in 2018/19.  Only 1% under target 
for this year

Expenditure variance to 
budget HRA

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Head of Finance Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance

(12.81%) 
(Q3 2019-

20)

Q3 used as a proxy measure until the year end 
data is available.

P
age 80



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Ave days sickness per FTE 
(include short- & long-term 

absence per FTE)

Aim 2: 
A high performing and 

well motivated workforce

Head of OD & 
Transformation

9 days 10.96 days Ave days sickness per FTE: short term days 3.17: 
long term days 7.79. There have been 37 cases of 
long term sickness this year equating to 1835 FTE 
days. 1161 of those days are attributable to Direct 
Services. In March there were 8 long term sickness 
cases of which 5 have returned to work. The 
remainder are being dealt with in line with the 
long term sickness procedure.

Pavilion Gardens: Trip 
Advisor rating (% 
good/excellent)

Aim 3: 
Flourishing town centres 

that support the local 
economy

Head of Service 
Commissioning

93.75% 86.4% 147 reviews have been recorded in the year with 
95 recorded as excellent and 32 very good. Three 
reviews were posted in March, 1 was recorded as 
poor, one average and one very good.

Pavilion Gardens: footfall Aim 3: 
Promote Tourism

Head of Service 
Commissioning

600,000 543,632 February footfall was heavily impacted by bad 
weather. Footfall reduced dramatically from the 
last weekend in February following the local case 
of coronavirus in Buxton. The site suffered 
diminishing footfall numbers until the forced 
closure on the 20th March.

P
age 81



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Agent satisfaction with the 
Planning Service

Head of 
Development 

Services

80% 57% The negative comments generally relate to 
responsiveness and customer service. We have 
lost three planning officers to the Planning 
Inspectorate this year. The number of planning 
applications has remained the same which is 
leading to delays in dealing with the 
applications. We have agreed a restructure of the 
service to increase capacity to deal with the level 
of applications but the delay in recruiting new staff 
has impacted the level of responsiveness, and 
some customers being disappointed with their 
experience. The new staff are now in place and will 
stabilise the position and enable us to be more 
responsive. We will continue to monitor the 
backlog during the next few months along with the 
levels of customer satisfaction and we may also 
need to consider whether there is a more robust 
and representative means of measuring customer 
satisfaction that we can look at.  

% of planning enforcement 
cases resolved in 13 weeks

Aim 3:                                 
High quality development 
and building control with 

an open for business 
approach

Head of 
Development 

Services

80% 69% Enforcement staff have been seconded to assist 
with planning applications whilst we have been 
restructuring the team. The new structure includes 
additional enforcement resource and also will 
increase capacity generally to allow enforcement 
officers to return to dealing with enforcement 
work and to bolster the team with for example 
trainee officers. Also the Council has been 
awarded £50k of government money to tackle 
enforcement issues in the Green belt.

P
age 82



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Number of fly tipping 
incidents collected by the 
Council (exc sec 46 waste) 

Head of Service 
Commissioning

199 302 Target is set from last year's figure - these are the 
numbers of cleared fly tips each month, which we 
have no control over. The ability to reduce the 
figures sits with Community Safety / Enforcement. 
There were 41 cleared instances of fly tipping in 
March.

% of routine permitted 
process premises inspected

Aim 4: Provision of high 
quality public amenities, 

clean streets and 
environmental health 

Head of 
Environmental 

Health

100% 85% A number of inspections were due in March; 
however the properties could not be accessed due 
to lockdown measures.

Joint Alliance Measures

% of Procurement activity 
on forward plan (Joint 

Alliance Measure)

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Head of Finance 72% 67.38% Throughout 2019/20 as part of the Procurement 
business support strategy we worked closely with 
Service areas to establish planned and recurring 
procurement data to inform the Councils’ 
Procurement forward plan.  This strategy has 
proved successful in improving compliance and 
maintaining a clear programme of reviews and 
communications across both Authorities. 
However, there will always be reactive 
procurement needs that cannot be established in 
advance and this has impacted the overall 
performance target being successfully achieved for 
2019/20.  Continuation of the current service 
support approach will be delivered during 
2020/21, but we will look to schedule increased 
review sessions with higher demand Service areas 
to work to improve the performance even further

P
age 83



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

2019/20 
Year End 

Result  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Number of  RIDDOR 
reportable / Lost Time 

(7days) accidents  (Joint 
Alliance measure)

Aim 2: A high performing 
and well motivated 

workforce

Corporate Health & 
Safety Advisor

0 4 Having reviewed the accident data for the past 12 
months the reduction in accidents overall is 
encouraging. Unfortunately, there have been four 
lost time accidents which have resulted in our 
aspirational target of 0 LTA’s being off track. Our 
commitment to reviewing operational risk 
assessments and staff training has continued over 
the past year, all lost time accidents have been 
investigated. Looking at the lost time accidents, all 
four were unforeseeable two being down to 
operative errors. 

 

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q4 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link

P
age 84

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q4_2019-20_0.pdf


HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Corporate Select Committee

13 July 2020

TITLE: Financial Planning Process

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor 
for Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED: ALL

1. Reason for the Report

1.1     The purpose of the report is to present the proposed financial planning process 
in order to review the longer term impact the Coronavirus pandemic has had 
on the financial position of the Authority.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Corporate Select Committee note the proposed process.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the 
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in 
accordance with local priorities. 

3.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  

3.3 This resulted in a small surplus position of £127,080 on the General Fund by 
the end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £17,910 into reserves over 
the 4 year life of the plan.  There was also a forecast surplus position of 
£2,061,950 by the end of 2023/24 for the HRA. The financial forecasts for the 
30-year business plan continued to show a significant surplus. 

3.4 However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, 
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial 
position.  The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing 
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings 
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being 
diverted elsewhere.

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



3.5 Current estimations show the financial impact could be up to approximately 
£2.8m in 2020/21.  Government funding of £0.96million has been awarded to 
date and a further package of funding was announced on 2nd July – with 
further details of this to be released shortly.  In addition, the Council’s reserves 
position allows for some drawdown during 2020/21.

3.6 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the 
impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use 
of reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will 
have on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  

3.7 Traditionally the Council would commence the process for the review of the 
MTFP in November each year, in preparation for the development of budget 
proposals in time for approval in February the following year.  However given 
the significant change in circumstances, it is proposed to bring forward the 
consideration of the MTFP to commence in July 2020.

3.8 A summary version of the updated MTFP – focusing on specific significant 
areas of change, will then be presented to Members once the exercise has 
been completed.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Equality and Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on 
the Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout 
the report.

Page 86



6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Climate Change
None

6.7 Consultation
The Council’s annual budget plans are the subject of an annual 
public consultation exercise

6.8 Risk Assessment
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within 
the plan

Claire Hazeldene
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24 – 
approved February 2020

Claire Hazeldene
Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services)
claire.hazeldene@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 87



7. Introduction

7.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the 
next 4 years.

7.2 The current MTFP was approved by Full Council in February 2020, and the 
next scheduled update is due for presentation in November/December 2020.

7.3 However, in light of the coronavirus pandemic, there is concern about the 
longer-term financial impact this will have on the delivery of corporate plan 
objectives.  Therefore to attempt to understand and forecast this and to allow 
more time to effectively plan the longer term response, it is proposed that an 
early review of the MTFP will commence in July. 

8. Approved Medium Term Financial Plan

8.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  A balanced budget for 2020/21 was presented, providing for a 
net general fund budget of £10,807,470 and a net HRA budget of 
£15,000,350.

8.2 A new financial year (2023/24) was added to the MTFP and the overall 
financial assumptions were updated for the four years. This resulted in a small 
surplus position of £127,080 on the General Fund by the end of 2023/24. An 
overall contribution of £17,910 into reserves was forecast during the 4 year life 
of the plan.

8.3 There was also a forecast surplus position of £2,061,950 by the end of 
2023/24 for the HRA. The financial forecasts for the 30-year business plan 
continued to show a significant surplus. 

8.4 The MTFP  also included an updated General Fund Capital Programme of 
£19,401,020 and HRA Capital Programme of £20,295,620 over the period 
2019/20 – 2023/24.

8.5 The report did flag the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews 
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may 
have a detrimental impact on the future financial position.   

8.6 The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the MTFP is shown 
below:-

Contingency 
Reserves

2019/20 
(£)

2020/21 
(£)

2021/22 
(£)

2022/23 
(£)

2023/24 
(£)

Balance at Year End 2,837,990 2,976,280 2,798,700 2,728,820 2,855,900
Minimum Requirement 1.203,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000
Headroom 1,634,990 1,644,280 1,466,700 1,396,820 1,523,900

Page 88



8.7 HRA balances were forecast to total 16.3million at the end of 2019/20.

9. Coronavirus Pandemic – 2020/21 Impact

9.1 The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having an 
adverse impact on the Council’s financial position.  The financial impact is 
arising from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally 
and organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met 
within the same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

9.2 A ‘Finance and Performance Impact of COVID-19’ Report was presented to 
Members on 4th June 2020.  The report attempted to forecast the impact that 
COVID-19 will have on the financial position and performance of the 
Council(s) in 2020/21.

9.3 In terms of the estimated impact on the 2020/21 financial position, a risk matrix 
has been completed which lists those potential financial risks – which have 
been rated dependent on current status:- 

Rating Description
IMPACT EMERGING Costs already being incurred

IMPACT LIKELY Costs likely to occur – as yet unidentified

POTENTIAL RISK Remains a risk – not emerged to date

9.4 Each risk has then been reviewed and an attempt made at forecasting the 
financial impact (where possible) - an ‘impact range’ of LOW – MEDIUM - 
HIGH has been applied taking into account length of lockdown and recovery 
period

9.5 A summary of the estimated financial impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 
budget position is shown below:-

IMPACT RANGEHPBC - GF
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     646,405                 964,463          1,516,740 

IMPACT LIKELY                     332,870                 566,465             851,173 

POTENTIAL RISK 72,765                 191,062             472,648 

TOTAL                1,052,040              1,721,990          2,840,561 

IMPACT RANGEHPBC - HRA
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     4,320                      6,320                   8,320 

IMPACT LIKELY (33,400) 13,200 84,800

POTENTIAL RISK                  82,500                  132,000                198,000 

TOTAL 53,420                  151,520                291,120 

Page 89



9.6 In terms of funding the financial impact of COVID-19, the Council has so far 
received two allocations of funding from Government totalling £953,883.  In 
addition, the reserves position allows for some drawdown during 2020/21.  
Based on the ‘high’ impact forecast, this would still leave an overspend 
position:-

HPBC (GF)            
(£)

‘High’ Impact 2,840,561
Government Funding (959,883)
Reserves drawdown (to ‘minimum contingency’)* (1,600,000)
Remaining shortfall 280,678

*includes 2019/20 provisional outturn surplus

9.7 On 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government  (MHCLG) announced a further package 
of financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of 
support:

COVID-19 related expenditure
- A further £500 million non ring-fenced allocation - taking the total support 

provided by government to £4.3 billion 
- The formula to calculate the individual calculations will reflect the factors 

from which the MHCLG data returns correlate most closely with 
expenditure.  The allocations will also take account of population, 
deprivation and the way that service costs vary across the country. Details 
on allocations will be announced in due course.   On the latest MHCLG 
return, HPBC flagged potential additional costs of £1.68m in 2020/21 – of 
which we currently have grant funding of £0.96m.

Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, 

fees and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.
- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of 

planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound.  The income 
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which 
is unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible 
will be based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No 
forms of commercial income will be covered by this scheme.  On the latest 
MHCLG return, HPBC flagged potential SFC income losses of £1.03m 
(exc. commercial). 

Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one
- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the 

government will agree a fair apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and 
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to 
2021.

9.8 The latest funding package will hopefully assist the Council’s financial position 
further, covering the deficit and reducing the requirement on reserves to fund 
the shortfall.

Page 90



9.9 The 2020/21 position will be monitored regularly and formally reported to 
Members as part of the usual quarterly financial reporting process.   Finance 
Business Partners (FBP) will be working with Services on a monthly basis to 
assess the 2020/21 position.

9.10 In terms of any significant changes to the forecast 2020/21 position, we are 
currently reviewing:-
 Parkwood’s recovery plan for the Leisure Centres and Pavilion Gardens 

and potential associated increased costs as part of the monthly ‘cost-plus’ 
arrangement

 The monthly collection rates for Council Tax, Business Rates and Rent to 
assess our forecasts on reduced in year collection as well as the potential 
impact on the Business Rate tax base

 As high streets and tourist attractions start to reopen, we’ll review our 
assumptions on car parking income forecasts

 Additional costs around the Council’s recovery plan – particularly in terms 
of reinstating services / reopening buildings

 Recovery rate of other sources of income post lockdown – Trade Waste, 
Planning, Land Charges etc.

 Impact of an economic downturn - increased benefit claims, reduced 
collection rates, additional spending pressures 

10. Financial Planning Process

10.1 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the 
impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use 
of reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will 
have on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  

10.2 Traditionally the Council would commence the process for the review of the 
MTFP in November each year in preparation for the development of budget 
proposals in time for approval in February the following year. However given 
the significant change in circumstances it is proposed to bring forward the 
consideration of the MTFP to commence in July 2020.

10.3 The Finance team will be updating forecasts relating to inflation, interest rates, 
pay awards, pensions impact and treasury management implications.  As well 
as considering the future impact a potential economic recession will have on 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Rents collection rates.

10.4 In addition, there are a number of actions that will require liaison with wider 
service areas:

 Consider longer term impact on fees and charges income
 Potential reprofiling of Capital Programme forecasts
 Update land disposal forecasts – time line and estimated values
 Understand any additional medium term costs of COVID recovery – 

working with recovery plan stream leads:-
- Reinstating Services
- Economic recovery
- Community recovery

Page 91



 Incorporate any potential financial savings developing from new ways of 
working in accordance with recovery plan stream:-
- Taking advantage of the positive legacy

 Review Efficiency plan – remaining savings profile and any potential 
reversal of savings already achieved

 Impact on major contracts (including AES, Parkwood, DCC etc)
 Understand the medium term impact on the HRA Business Plan
 Any other significant financial impact on the current MTFP

10.5 The forecast reserves position will also need to be reassessed.  When setting 
the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020, the general 
fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was estimated to 
total £2,837,990.

10.6 The 2019/20 provisional outturn position shows a £295,000 surplus.  The 
proposal within the Provision Outturn Report is to set £200,000 of this aside 
specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery activities and leave £2.841m in general 
fund contingency (just slightly higher than forecast in the MTFP presented in 
February).  

10.7 The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks 
cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the 
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the 
budget provides.

10.8 While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general 
reserves, the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, 
operational and financial risks facing the Council. These amounts are then 
moderated to acknowledge the likelihood of all risk events occurring together.  
When setting the Budget in February, the minimum level of general fund 
contingency reserves required was set at £1,332,000

10.9 In additional to utilising the £0.2m COVID-19 earmarked reserve in offsetting 
the impact in the current financial year, the Council could utilise contingency 
reserves of approximately £1.4 million, which would leave the contingency 
balance just above the minimum required amount of £1.3 million over the life 
of the current MTFP.   

10.10 However, the current MTFP does not take account of the impact of COVID-19, 
which is likely to have implications not just in the current year, but over the 
medium-term. Therefore, the MTFP will need to be updated to reflect the 
financial risks in order to understand the implications on the reserves position.

10.11  In terms of the HRA, the financial impact of COVID-19 is expected to be less 
severe, and the HRA has sufficient reserves to cover this (estimated at £16.3 
million as at 31st March 2020), certainly in the medium term. There may be a 
longer term impact on the HRA business plan which will be considered as part 
of the MTFP update.

Page 92



10.12 A summary version of the updated MTFP – focusing on those specific 
significant areas of change, will then be presented to Members once the 
exercise has been completed.

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 COVID-19 Pandemic - Recovery - Reinstating Services, Financial Recovery and Positive Legacy
	6 Fourth Quarter Financial Procurement and Performance Review
	Appendix A - Financial Report - Fourth Quarter Financial Prourement and Performance Review
	Appendix B - Procurement Report - Fourth Quarter Financial Prourement and Performance Review
	Appendix C - Performance Report - Fourth Quarter Financial Prourement and Performance Review

	7 Financial Planning Process
	11 Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting

